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Newark Board of Education

OFFICE OF SCHOOL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR Where Passion Meets Progress

S Valerie V. Wilson, RSBO, QPA » CFO/School Business Administrator

February 4, 2021

Dr. Angelica Allen-McMillan

Acting Commissioner of Education
New Jersey Department of Education
100 Riverview Executive Plaza CN 500
Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0500

Dear Dr. Angelica Allen-McMillan, School Board Members and Citizens:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Newark Board of Education of the City of Newark
(District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the
accuracy of the data and completeness and faimess of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests
with the management of the District. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this
report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information at June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position
and cash flows, where applicable, for the year, then ended. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader
to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical, and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter (designed to
complement management's discussion and analysis and should be read in conjunction with it), the
District's organizational chart, and a roster of officials, and a list of professionals. The financial section
includes management's discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements, required supplementary
information, and other supplementary information, as well as the auditor's report thereon, The statistical
section, which is unaudited, includes selected financial and demographic information, generally
presented on a multi-year basis. The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity
with the provisions of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Reguirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the
New Jersey State Treasury Circular Letter 15-08 OMB, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal
Grants, State Grants, and State Aid. Information related to this single audit, including the independent
auditors’ report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other matters based
on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
an independent auditors' report on compliance for each major federal and State program and on internal
control over compliance required by the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey Circular 15-08 are included
in the single audit section of this report,



Continuatlon of CAFR Report-2019-2020
1. Reporting Entity and Xts Services

The District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). All funds and the Government-wide financial statements of the
District are included in this year's report. The District and all its schools constitute the District's
reporting entity and do not have any component units and are not considered a component unit of any
other governmental unit.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre-K through 12.
These include regular, vocational, as well as special education services to students with physical and/or
mental disabilities. The District has a resident student enrollment of approximately 50,615 students.
This figure includes District students requiring out of District placements and students attending charter
and community-based preschools. The following table details changes in average daily enrollment in
District schools over the last five years and the projection for the one subsequent year.

Average Daily Enrollment

Fiscal Student Percent

Year Enrollment* Change
2020-21 37,066 (.35%)
2019-20 37,197 0.2%
2018-19 37,129 2.00
2017-18 36,401 0.18
2016-17 35,964 0.21)
2015-16 36,041 0.18
2014-15 35,976 (3.23)

*Not including District students requiring out of District placements and students attending charter and
community-based preschools.

FY 2020-21 is the projected average daily enrollments.
2. Economic Condition and Outlook

Economic Condition:

The City of Newark is the largest city in the State of New Jersey, with a population of more than 281,000,
It serves as the county seat for Essex, with County, State, and Federal Courts attracting a large number
of law firms to the central business district.

Newark's major industries include insurance, air transportation, communications, health care, and higher
education. It is home to Port Newark, the largest port on the East Coast and the third-largest port in the
country.

Additionally, Newark is the insurance, finance, and banking capital of the State. Headquartered in
Newark are a number of large financial institutions, including the Prudential Insurance Company and
Blue Cross Blue Shield of New Jersey, as well as the State's largest public utility company, Public
Service Electric, and Gas. Newark is the site of the Rutgers New Jersey Medical School, the New Jersey
Institute of Technology, the Newark campus of Rutgers University, Seton Hall Law School, Berkley

2
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College, and Essex County Coliegc Spanning over 320 acres, these five colleges serve a population of
approximately 50,000 students and faculty.

Economic Qutlook:

Currently, the economic outlook for Newark is uncertain due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The pandemic
has had a devastating impact on the local economy; especially small businesses and the residents. Even
under the current conditions of this pandemic, the leadership in Newark continues to stay committed to
the local economy.

On December 8, 2020, Governor Phil Murphy, along with Mayor Ras J. Baraka, announced a five year
$190M renovation of Newark's Penn Station. Penn Station first opened in 1935 and is the seventh-
largest transportation hub in the nation. It serves more than 50,000 transit commuters daily and is a
major gateway for commerce, employment, and economic development.

Newark officials recently announced the "Making Housing Homes: A Housing First Initiative,"
designed to create transitional, permanent, and supportive housing, to end homelessness in Newark. The
initiative will begin with the creation of 300 units. Each proposal will have the opportunity to use up to
10 parcels of vacant city-owned land at $2/Sq—Ft. from the Department of Economic and Housing
Development (EHD). In addition, $2.0M of capital/gap financing for construction, not to exceed $500K
per partner and no greater than $50K per unit from EHD.

Age of School Buildings:

The average age of our buildings is 82,46 years old. We have incorporated a list of our buildings that
show the year they were built.

Building Name _ Year Built
* Alexander Street School - L Sl . 1896
* Bragaw Avenue 1928
* Dr., Martin Luther King Jr. 1872
* Fifteenth Avenue School _ ‘ . 1894
* Madison Avenue School 1904
Abington Avenue _ _ : 1900
‘American History High (Montgomery) ‘ o 1910
Ann Street 1891
Arlingion Avenue / Ridge ECC 1924
Arts High 1930
Avon Aeademy ‘ ‘ N Lo : 1905
‘Bard Early College / Camden Middle .- . el - 1973
Barringer High School 1897
Belmont Runyon 2004
Benjamin Franklm , _ _ - 1889
_Boylan Sireet - . T o , " - -1 1929
Branch BreoklECC North _ 192_4
‘Bruce Street/ George Washington Carvet ..~ - 0 ' - 1979
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Camden Street 1968
Central High 2008
Chancellor Avenue 1930
Cleveland 1912
Dr. E. Alma Flagg 1984
Dr. William H. Horton_ 1894
Eagle Academy 1932
Early CC Central / Samuel L. Berfiner 1972
Early CC North / Gladys Hillman-Jones 1911
Early CC South / Chancellor Avenue Annex 1959
Early CC West / Old Speedway 1916
East Side High 1911
Elliott Street 2015
Fourtcenth Avenue 1906
Harold Wilson 1983
Harriet Tubman 1888
Havikins Street. 1887
Hawthorne Avenue - 1908
Newsrk Voéétional; s 1957
Ivy Hill 1931
John F. Kennedy 1967
Lafayette Street 1848
Lincoln 1908
Lonise A. Spencer . 1976
Luis Munoz Marin' . 1955
Malcolm X Shahazz 1913
McKinley == 1915
Mount Vernon 1955
First Avenue 2007
New Jersey Regional Day 1984
Sir Isaac Newton Street School 1866
Salome Urena (Formerly North 10' Street Elem) 1964
Oliver Street. ' 2016
Park Elementary - 2009
Peshine Academi' 1911

uitman Street 1963
Rafael Hernandez, 1995
Ridge Street . 1924
Roberto Clemente 1884
Science Park High 2006
South Street 2018
South Seventeenth Street 1911
East Ward Elementary (Formerly South Streef) 1869
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speedway 2010
Susséx Avéiue _ . 1900
Technology High . - - _ . e
Thirteenth Avenue : 1971
University High 1956
West Side Campus 1926
Wilson Avenue 1881

* = Charter ' '

3. Teaching & Learning:

Ensuring students' academic proficiency and wellness are interrelated goals that the Office of Teaching
and Learning recognizes as our core mission. Our actions reinforce the goal that NPS students are on
track to graduate high school with the requisite experiences, knowledge, and skills to thrive in college,
careers, and life. |

NPS continues to implement the New Jersey Student Learning Standards (NISLS) and does so now with
leaders in 12 academic offices. Their vision and drive have helped to restructure the Office of Teaching
and Learning during SY 2019-2020. Highlights from the last year include the successful audit by the
NIDOE of state monitoring (NJQSAC). On all measures, including the onsite evaluation of Instruction
and Programs, saw the District successful.

During this school year, 117 new curriculum documents were written and approved by the Newark
Board of Education. One highlight of that work was the new integrated language arts and social studies
curricular units that focus on civics, history, geography, and economics, as well as English Language
Arts. These K-5 units of study embed the Amistad curriculum and are currently being reviewed by a
committee of city residents. Ensuring transparency in all of our work is a central tenet and we are
confident that the community response will help us to improve our initial work.

The directors from the offices within Teaching and Learning developed a common unit plan and lesson
plan format that was used to develop all new curricula. Central to that work was the inclusion of learning
intentions, success criteria, daily instructional tasks (with feedback methods). At the unit level, the
inclusion of SEL objectives and culturally responsive and sustaining pedagogical practices were
included. These facets have helped us to achieve greater teacher clarity (Hattie, 2009) and increased
student [earning,.

We have continued our focus on preventing reading difficulties with a revision of the phonies curriculum
for grades K-2, and given the increased need for support because of COVID 19, we also added a phonics
Boot camp for grades K-2 and a mathematics Boot camp for grades 2-5.

The District also introduced new benchmark assessments by the NWEA (MAP Growth) in reading,
language arts, mathematics, and Science for students in grades K-11, MAP Growth is a Benchmark test
administered 3 x a year, Within 24 hours, essential information about what every student knows and is
ready to learn is available. These assessments allow for a more comprehensive and reliable system of
assessment. Further, these measures provide a predictability report for the NJSLA, SAT, and ACT.
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At the secondary level, we provided opportunities for more AP teachers to take online seminars this past
summer and introduced this fall across 8 of our high schools' Pre-AP courses in ninth grade for World
History, English I, Algebra I, Biology, and the arts.

As the Office of Teaching and Learning heads into 2021, we have been busy deepening our knowledge
through the consumption and development of key research pertaining to gifted and talented education,
the professional development school, K-12 research as an embedded curriculum across all disciplines,
and middle school education. Through our partnership with the Joseph C. Comwall Center for
Metropolitan Studies at Rutgers-Newark, we have been reading, studying, and presenting on these topics
to all teacher-coaches, supervisors, directors, special assistants, and Assistant Superintendent who
comprise the Office of Teaching and Learning. Additionally, we have engaged with the Center for
talented Youth at Johns Hopkins as we seck to learn more about exemplary practices in gified education.

English Language Arts:

Improving the design, content, and pedagogical practices represents the central goals of the Office of
English Language Arts. K-5 integrated units of study that privilege geography, economics, civics,
history, literature, and writing were developed during the spring and summer, 2020. These new units
serve as a primary way to introduce students to the Amistad history. Children now leamn about the
geography, countries, and cultural aspects of Africa in first grade. They revisit this learning in fourth
grade when they study medieval African kingdoms. Across all the grades, children learn about the
enslavement of Africans, African Americans, and indigenous peoples and the resistance these people
practiced as they sought their freedom during enslavement and post-Reconstruction. All of the units
include explicit learning intentions, methods for students to be successful, and daily tasks that help
students and teachers know how well students have learned. There are key power standards embedded
in all units with an emphasis on vocabulary, writing in response to the text, comprehension, and the
development of explicit disciplinary knowledge.

A collection of new literature units for grade 5-8 have been developed as well, These, too, include
learning intentions, success criteria, daily instructional tasks, and feedback methods. New secondary
units are being developed in fall 2020 and will continue in development across this current school year.
All of these new literature units provide opportunities for students to read and engage with culturally
relevant texts that affirm their backgrounds, identities, histories, and cultures as assets for teaching and
learning, '

Building foundational skills continue to be an important aspect of the work by the Office of English
Language Arts. To that end, a new K-2 phonics curriculum was created. These daily lesson plans include
two quick assessments so that at the mid-point of a lesson, a teacher is able to identify who is
demonstrating mastery and who is not. This mid-point assessment allows the teacher to group students
for practice work at centers and provides direct instruction to those children who did not demonstrate
mastery. At the end of each lesson, there is a very brief assessment that allows teachers to update their
plans for the next day and to ensure students who did not demonstrate achievement are supported. All
units of study are aligned to the New Jersey Student Learning Standards,

A primary responsibility of the four supervisors and teacher coach is to support the learning of the 41
 ELA coaches in K-8 school and the 15 department chairpersons (DCs) at the secondary level. The team
works with coaches and DCs through onsite PLCs, co-observation of instruction, and monthly
professional development. There is an explicit focus on supporting school leaders in the effective

6
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development of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) through research and evidence-based
strategies that use data to improve instruction.

The Office of English Language Arts continues to value culturally responsive teaching and recognizes
the positive effects on student learning to elevate the capacity of students who have traditionally been
marginalized in education. The Culturally Responsive-Sustaining framework helps educators create
student-centered learning environments that affirm racial, linguistic and cultural identities; prepare
students for rigor and independent learning; develop students' abilities to connect across lines of
difference; elevate historically marginalized voices; and empower students as agents of social change
(New York State Education Department, 2019). As we continue equity work in our schools, we have
renewed our partnership with the National Urban Alliance, a non-profit organization developed to
provide standard-aligned strategies, culturally responsive teaching practlces, and organizational
guidance to accelerate student achievement.

Mathematies:

High quality, engaging mathematics instruction is critical to build students as flexible, resourceful
problem solvers. To that end, the Office of Mathematics focused on instruction and curricula to develop
teachers in their instructional practice to think and ultimately teach differently. Through a robust array
of professional development opportunities for teachers, math coaches, and school leaders, educators at
_ all levels are equipped with the knowledge and strategies to lead this change process.

Monthly professional development sessions were offered for school-level support (math coaches) and
building leadership (mathematics department chairpersons and principals). These sessions focused on
understanding students' thinking, developing and coaching teachers, and building students’
representations of mathematics. In addition, the Office of Mathematics offered weekly, one-hour
sessions for classroom teachers. These sessions focused on unit overviews from curriculum guides with
emphases on students' conceptual understanding and resources for student engagement. Sessions are
divided into two parts: first, the Summaries of Key Learnings are reviewed and, second, teachers and
coaches have an opportunity to engage in a question-and-answer session.

The Office of Mathematics has formed a partnership with Rutgers University-Newark and is engaging
in a project that raises students' mathematical enjoyment and performance. This project—Teaching for
Conceptual Understanding of Mathematics in Grades 3 and 4 {TCM3-4)—is a two-year effort to support
the professional leaming about foundational mathematical literacies for grades 3 and 4. Ten coaches
were chosen alongside 45 teachers of grades 2, 3, and 4. TCM3-4 builds coaches' capacity to enhance
teachers' knowledge about four mathematics content modules, each aligned with the curriculum of the
Newark Board of Education and the New Jersey Student Learning Standards (NJSLS). The content
modules include topics such as multiplication and division of whole numbers, fractions, comparing
fractions, identifying equivalent fractions, proportional reasoning, as well as adding and subtracting
fractions. In each module, participants will engage cross-cuiting pedagogical processes such as the
Mathematical Practices of the NJSLS, the 4A-Instructional Model (Powell, 2018), as well as visual and
tangible manipulative tools such as Cuisenaire rods. For each content module, the participant will create
related sequences of tasks for lessons and instructional YouTube videos to implement in a project
practicum with 3rd- and 4th-grade students. These practicum sessions occur in afterschool programs.
" During the practicum, afier receiving constructive feedback, participants will revise their mathematical
tasks and videos. These revised materials will subsequently be available for use by participants and their
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colleagues in future settings of professional enhancement and classroom instruction in‘remote or face-
to-face leaming formats.

The Office of Mathematics has formed a partnership with EF+ Math. This 5-year partnership (grades 3
through 8) funded by the New Schools Venture Fund aims to improve student outcomes in mathematics
by targeting students' executive functions, which include attention, memory, and thought management.
This design funds educators, researchers, and developers to work side by side to co-design bold
approaches for mathermnatics learning that build executive function skills using conceptual understanding
and complex problem-solving.

Mathematics is a platform upon which many other academic pursuits depend; therefore, the design of
cutricula and the mathematics program is critical. Our mathematics curriculum documents guide both
the implementation of the National Council of Teachers of Mathematics Standards and the New Jersey
Student Learning Standards in Mathematics. This redesign process included grades 6-8, Pre-Calculus,
Calculus, and Probability and Statistics in the summer of 2020. These grade levels were chosen in order
to backward design the entire PreK-12 system in mathematics.

In grades 6-8, students’ understanding of foundational algebraic and geometric concepts is developed
through extended experience overall three years and across a broad range of mathematics content,
including statistics, numbers, and measurement, In algebra, the focus is on proficiency in recognizing
and working effectively with linear relationships and their corresponding representations in tables,
graphs, and equations; such proficiency includes competence in solving linear equations. Students can
develop the desired algebraic facility through problems and contexts that involve linear and nonlinear
relationships. Moreover, through topics such as the Pythagorean Theorem, they see just how algebra
and geometry as interconnected with each other and with other content areas in the curriculum.

Pre-Calculus extends previous studies of algebra, geometry, and mathematical functions into a
preparatory course for Calculus. The course focuses on the mastery of critical thinking skills and
exposure to new skills necessary for success in subsequent math courses. Throughout the course,
Common Core standards are taught and reinforced as the student learns how to apply the concepts in
real-life situations. Topics include fundamental concepts of Algebra, functions, and graphs, polynomial
and rational functions, exponential and logarithmic functions, trigonometric functions, analytic
trigonometry, conic sections, and an introduction to Calculus. The course curricutum has included
technological integration, which will provide increased opportunities to provide students with interactive
and engaging activities that will assist in the acquisition of deeper conceptual understanding.

The Calculus curriculum encompasses four areas: algebraic processes, functions and analytic geometry,
differential calculus, and integral calculus. The initial unit is provided to students as an extension of
their prior algebraic experience, thereby facilitating the transition into subsequent units. Students are
expected to represent physical situations in graphical, numerical, and analytical forms. They use
modeling, technology, and pencil-and-paper methods to solve a variety of problems, including the rate
of change, optimization, the area between curves, and volumes of solids.

The AP Statistics and Statistics & Probability courses both introduce students to the major concepts and
tools for collecting, organizing, analyzing, presenting, and drawing conclusions from data. Statistics lies
at the heart of the type of quantitative reasoning necessary for making important advances in the
sciences, such as medicine and psychology, and for making important decisions in business and public
policy. There are four themes in the content and skills addressed in these courses: Exploring Data,

8
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Sampling and Experimentation, Probability and Simulation, and Statistical Inference. In both courses,
students use investigations, problem-solving, technology, and writing as they build conceptual
understanding. The AP course is equivalent to a one-semester, introductory, non-calculus-based college
course in statistics. It is paced so that prescribed content and skills are addressed thoroughly in time for
the AP Exam and is recommended for students who have demonstrated significant mathematical
maturity and quantitative reasoning ability. Statistics & Probability addresses the same four themes
over the course of the full year, with some of the topics found in the AP course removed in favor of
more work on practical applications. Both courses are excellent options for secondary school students
who have successfully completed Algebra II. Students planning to concentrate in business, medicine,

the sciences, pubhc policy, sociology, or psychaiogy for example, will benefit greatly from taking one
of these courses in high school.

Over the next two years, curricula for K-5, Algebra 1, Geometry, and Algebra 2 will be rewritten.
Curricula for electives in mathematics will also be developed, including Linear Algebra, Discrete
Mathematics, and Math Applications and Problem Solving,

Science:

The Office of Science has continued its efforts o realize the vision for science education set forth in 4
Framework for K-12 Science Education and the New Jersey Student Learning Standards for Science
(NJSLS-8) through the provision of quality core curricular resources, professional development, and
partnerships that center around knowledge-building and students learning Science through authentic and
engaging experiences.

In the spring of 2020, the Office of Science facilitated a high school curricular resource review that
resulted in the adoption of a new, standards-aligned resource for biology (Inspire Biology), chemistry
(Inspire Chemistry), and physics (Jnspire Physics). Subsequently, curriculum in biology, chemistry,
and physics was re-written in the summer of 2020. These curricula were designed to incorporate specific
daily instructional tasks, all aligned to targeted learning intentions and success criteria. Resource-
specific professional development was provided for all teachers of these content areas in the summer of
2020, in addition to the fall of 2020. Major investments to high school laboratories were made in the
fall of 2020 to support their implementation of the standards, in addition to ensuring that students have
access to high quality materials necessary for experiential learning

The District just completed year three (3) of implementation of Investigating and Questioning our World
Through Science and Technology (IQWST) for grades six (6) through eight {8). Curricula for grades
six and seven were re~written in the summer of 2020.

Newark's K-5 science program, Inspire Science, has been implemented for the past two (2) years.
Curricula for grades three, four, and five were re-wriiten in the summer of 2020.

The introduction of MAP testing in Science to students in grades 4-11 will allow teachers and
administrators to identify gaps in students’ leamning and differentiate instruction based on each student's
starting point in the goal areas of Life Science, Physical Science, and Earth and Space Science.

Mystery Science and Discovery Education serve as supplemental resources and have become
particularly helpful in navigating remote teaching and learning. Teachers have access to engaging
videos, relevant readings, and modified lab experiences via these resources.

9
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In addition to major advancements in curriculum, strategic partnerships continue to further advance the
vision for science education within the Newark Board of Education. Specifically:

o Students2Science. In 2016, this brought the launch of this new partnership that puts students at
the center of scientific learning and in the role of young scientists. Through virtual lab sessions
(5-12) and in-person visits (8-12) to a state-of-the-art lab facility at the Newark Board of
Education, students are presented with questions and problems that they must answer or solve
through experimentation and the use of critical thinking and problem solving skills.

o Yogi Berra Museum and Learning Center. Tn SY 2020-2021, all fourth graders in the District
will have had a virtual learning experience on the intersection of physics and sports.

Social Studies:

Through a curriculum grounded in inquired-based education as outlined by the National Council of
Social Studies, we are developing students to be critically thinking, active, global citizens.

In grades K-5, we have created culiurally relevant interdisciplinary ELA and Social Studies units of
study. Through these units, we are developing the core skills and begin the systematic weaving of the
disciplines of the social sciences that form the historical narrative. In these units of study, students are
engaging econorhic concepts, discussing civic obligation and participation, exploring geography as a
factor for human movement, and tackling hard history.

In grades 6-12, we are creating a new curriculum grounded in the theoretical framework of agency, as
evident in the legislative journey and passing of the Amistad statute. Our vision approaches the
engagement of the historical narrative from the lens of active, relevant, all-people are present design.

To support our goal of developing critically thinking, active, global citizens, we are sourcing robust
resources and partnerships with expansive capabilitics. We are entering textbook adoption discussion
with HMH for the products that best align with our vision. A partnership with Newsela Social Studies
will allow us to tailor supporting, current, and relevant content for teacher facilitation of learning. The
‘New York Federal Reserve Education Outreach Program is eager to assist in providing support for the
internal-led rewrite of the Fconomic and Financial Literacy courses. For our high schools, our
partnership with Rutgers-Newark is providing engaging, hands-on learning through documentarian
training with the New Immigrant Project.

In the immediate, robust qualitative data will help us assess the pedagogically landscape. A highly
skilled teaching corps is necessary for this groundbreaking transformative approach to social studies
education in Newark to occur. Thus, class visits and pointed feedback for teachers and coaching for
DCs, VPs, and principals is necessary.

In the three-year Social Studies Department plan, the development of the first standardized social studies
growth assessment will roll out. In partnership with a testing firm, teachers will be provided the training
10 help write the growth assessments. This training will also benefit in the development of improved in-
course summative assessments.

10



Continuation of CAFR Report- 2019-2020

The Arts:

Inspiring students to discover and achieve their highest creative potential guides the work of the Office
of Visual & Performing Arts. After undertaking a comprehensive self-assessment of arts education
programs across the District, we are in the final stages of articulating goals for the immediate and long-
term development of sustained sequential learning in all art forms. Five major themes evolved as a result
of the self-assessment and include: 1) Student Access and Participation, 2) Staff Capacity Building, 3)
Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment, 4) Arts Partnership & Collaboration, and 5) Building &
Sustaining Arts Infrastructure. Goals and action steps for the arts have evolved from identified
benchmarks resulting from data collected from the arts landscape report and are under review to
strategically align with the District's strategic plan, The Next Decade.

With the adoption of the New Jersey Student Learning Standards in Visual & Performing Arts (NJSLS-
VPA) and new unit and lesson plan formats in the Office of Teaching and Learning, we have begun the
task of mapping and designing new curricula for dance, music, theatre and visual arts for formal adoption
and implementation aligned to the new standards. In the process of writing, we are piloting units and

lessons developed over the summer for evaluation and feedback, which affords the opportunity to revise
and refine products in support of positive student outcomes.

A focus of our curricula work is to view arts education through a lens of developing student creative
capacities and the use of artistic practices, so students value and internalize them as dispositions relevant
to 21%-century preparation for college, career, and life. We are challenging ourselves to question long-
standing traditions and approaches to teaching and learning in the arts, which define what is classical in
the study of each art form in consideration of cultural biases and relevance for students. All units will
facilitate culturally responsive teaching and social-emotional learning as embedded practice.

The Office of Visual & Performing Arts is comprised of a director and one supervisor that support the
work of 227 visual and performing arts teachers across 64 elementary and high schools. In building the
capacity of arts educators to achieve greater teacher clarity and increase student learning in the arts, the
Office of Visual & Performing Arts instituted a Model Teachers for Arts Education professional
development program comprised of eight arts educators inclusive of all art forms. This program is a
hands-on experience so that NBOE Visual & Performing Arts Educators will be able to refine
instructional practice and cultivate skills in adult Jearning and facilitation. The first cohort of teachers is
experimenting with the use of a protocol for professional learning communities to reflect on and deepen
classroom practices for better student outcomes. A series of workshops for New to NBOE: Arts
Educators was established as a safe space to share best practices and learn from each other as they
navigate their first or second year in the District.

District-wide professional development for all arts educators has included the study of SEL
competencies to identify strategies that support social and emotional learning integrated with arts
learning and art classroom practices, The small art form and grade-level specific breakout groups of arts
educators analyze unit plans and collaborate around lesson plans and teaching strategies in preparation
for delivery of content to students, as well as feedback for curricula works in progress. Leaming
intentions and success criteria are consistently written and assessed as part of the unit and lesson plan
reviews for teacher and student clarity. Professional development for school-based arts supervisors (VPs
and DCs) have focused on understanding the artistic processes and the new NJSLS-VPA, writing student
learning goals and SGOs aligned to specific standards and methods for measuring student progress for
mastery.

11
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Ongoing supports for arts education through established partnerships have continued during virtual
learning. The Recorder Arts for Musical Pathways (RAMP) program, in collaboration with NJPAC, has
resulted in music teacher professional development in teaching the recorder for grade 3 students. Qur
partnership with Save The Music Foundation has entered the fourth year with musical instrument or
music technology donations to 7 schools this year to the benefit of students who have received musical
instruments for continued practice and learning from home. The Renew the Arts initiative continues to
provide a deeper understanding of strengths, weaknesses, challenges, and opportunities at both the
school and district level and consider need requests from schools for teacher and student resources via
the art office.

Office of Student Life:

The Office of Student Support Services (OSSS) was replaced in SY 2019-2020 with the Office of
Student Life. The District understands that numerous factors can contribute to a student becoming at-
risk at any level in his or her academic growth and works to monitor and respond to student needs.

In its support of the District's mission to afford the highest level of teaching and learning and build an
effective and efficient community of learning and character, the Office of Student Life has a cadre of
intervention and referral programs and services readily available, including counseling for students and
families. Students exhibiting learning or behavioral problems are assisted through the implementation

of early intervention strategies. In an effort to alleviate all issues that could prevent or interfere with
success and academic growth, these resources are provided to students and families:

Bullying Prevention and Suicide Awareness

Character Education Initiative

Community Collaborations

Community Resource Directory Crisis Response Team
Dream Leader -Peer Leadership Programs

Mental Health

Student Assistance and Abuse Prevention

During this school year, The Office of Student Life will work collaboratively with Teaching and
Learning offices to infuse social-emotional learning strategies within the existing and newly developed
curriculum.

Early Childhood:

The Office of Early Childhood (OEC) mects the needs of children ages three (3) to five (5) in pre-K3
and pre-K4 classrooms across Newark in various settings. The District's preschool program historically
serves over 7,000 children in 31 District elementary schools, six (6) District Early Childhood Schools
that serve only pre-k, and 56 community-based preschool provider centers. The 2020-2021 enrollment
has been impacted by the current pandemic. The District has an annual goal of increasing pre-K
enrollment in hopes of eventually attaining 100% participation of three (3)-five (5) year-olds in a high-
quality education program prior to the start of Kindergarten. -

The Office of Early Childhood supports those 90+ locations where pre-K children are educated. The
OEC team provides professional development, coaching, and other support to ensure every pre-K
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classroom is delivering developmentally appropriate practices in a nurturing and safe learning
environment that focuses on ensuring positive academic and social-emotions outcomes for children. In
the school year 2020-2021, the District will continue to implement its federal Head Start grant, which
translates to augmented comprehensive academic, social, health, and emotional services to 1,000
students and their families.

In addition to providing high-quality programming in the various sites, the OEC also commits significant
time and resources to engage the families of these youngest learners and providing them with the tools
to be partners with their children's schools and to establish strong habits (beginning with consistent
attendance) that will lead to success in school.

Bilingual/ESL Education:

Our District embraces and celebrates the uniqueness of over 6,000 English Language Learners (ELLs).
Our learners speak more than 25 languages and come from over 55 countries, They bring with them a
wealth of knowledge and experience that we seek to identify and cultivate. Our office's mission centers
around cultivating the genius of each of our bilingual students while supporting their linguistic and
academic growth. Our vision is for all ELLs to graduate prepared for college and career success. This is
accomplished by providing access to a rigorous curriculum and an education that embraces their
languages, cultures, and diversity.

Our District provides language supports to students through transitional bilingual programs (TBE) and
English as a Second Language (ESL) classes. In our TBE classes, students received instruction in
English and their native language in order to decpen their content knowledge while learning English.
ELLs received a minimum of one period of ESL instruction per day. During ESL instruction, teachers
focused on furthering student's English language use. These two program models assisted student's
acquisition of English in all language domains: listening, speaking, reading, and writing.

We continued to coordinate our work with that of offices within the Teaching and Learning team to
provide aligned support to schools. Our work focused on helping teachers improve instructional practice
in order to support student learning and ouicomes. We expanded the number of content areas teachers
and staff that were trained on sheltered instruction strategies, such as SIOP. We maintained ours
afterschool and summer language enrichment programs for our ELL and immigrant students. We also
continued to refine our supports for students with limited or interrupted schooling by providing targeted
support and teacher training.

Many of our ELL students and families were affected by COVID-19. Students were impacted in
academic and social /emotional areas. This required that our office tailor the support we provided to
schools and teachers. Our support focused on helping -teachers make content accessible and
comprehensible to students during remote learning. We also provide a workshop for our ELL parents
with suggestions on how to support their child academically, socially, and emotionally at home during
this difficult time. :

Expanded Learning Time:

The Expanded Learning Time (ELT) program oversces the administration and implementation of a
majority of the District's afterschool programs, initiatives, and activities, including the Dr. Marion A.
Bolden Student Center. This past year with COVID 19, the ELT provided afterschool and summer
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projects for more than 8,500 students. The ELT offered X-12 students tutoring support, academic and
enrichment opportunities, including STEM, programming, arts, chess, writing, and physical activities,
as well as character development for students.

Tn Summer 2020, Summer Plus was a blend of academic and enrichment activities and programs offered
virtually for more than 1,200 students. All of our rising 1% grade through 8™_grade students received
learning at-home kits that included notebooks markers, rulers, compass, scissors, glue sticks, jump
ropes, magnifying glass, and other learning tools. Until March 2020, The Bolden Student Center
provided a space and place for high school students to learn, socialize, and plan for future endeavors.
Even as we transitioned to virtual learning, leaming experiences for high school students still occurred
through our partners., such as art workshops, STEM and college, and career awareness, Sounds of
Tomorrow, and STRIVE Inc. ELT continues to manage a 21% Century Community Learning Center
Grant from the Department of Education for 160 students in 79.10% grades at four schools. All students
participating in the ELT programs receive a meal and snack from the Child and Adult Food Care
Program. These important services were continued throughout 2020.

Instructional Technology:

The Newark Board of Education continues to invest in both educational technologies for the classroom
and teacher professional development. During the last several years has focused on providing regular
opportunities for Kindergarten to 12th-grade students to learn computational thinking and programming
through structured computer science classes and lessons. All District high schools offer Computer
Science courses aligned to the New Jersey Student Learning Standards for Computer Science and
Design Thinking.

From an instructional perspective, the Board continues to invest in instructional platforms that align
with our curriculum and provide students with authentic experiences using technology. We have placed
emphasis on reviewing our instructional platforms and their usage to ensure we support the ones that
directly impact student learning while removing platforms that do not align with instructional goals.
Professional development opportunities focusing on how to use the platforms with specific instructional
strategies remain a primary focus. This development has been done through virtual sessions and online
recorded professional development, with all educators having access to a library of sessions fo assist
them as needed. A cohort of middle school Computer Science teachers will also receive professional
development through Liberty Science Center to enhance their knowledge and expand their skills in
Computer Science education.

Students are offered extra-curricular opportunities to engage with technology and computer science
through the Board's robotics program as well as through collaboration with Girls Who Code. In 2020-
2021 participation in the FIRST Robotics League impacted more than 600 students throughout the
District. This year that works will continue virtually. The Newark Board of Education is one of twelve
recipients of the FIRST STEM Equity Grant, which provided funding for two additional high school
robotics teams in the District as part of continued growth in this area. Also returning for the 2020-2021
school year are school-based clubs with Girls Who Code. These clubs have focused on increasing the
number of students in underserved populations being exposed to computer science in a meaningful and
hands-on program.
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4, Internal Control

‘Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls designed to
ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate
accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of America as they pertain to
governmental entities. Internal control is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgments by management.

As arecipient of federal awards and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring
that adequate internal controls are in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations

related to those programs. Internal control is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District
management.

As part of the District's single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the
internal control, including that portion related to federal awards and state financial assistance programs,
as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws, regulations, contracts and
grants.

5. Budgetary Controls

In addition to internal control, the District maintains budgetary controls. The legal level of budgetary
control is established at line item accounts within each applicable fund. The objective of these budgetary
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget
approved by the Commissioner of Education. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the General
Fund and the Special Revenue Fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital improvement
accounted for in the Capital Projects Fund. The final budget amount, as amended, for the fiscal year is
reflected in the financial section, and the analysis of the results thereon is reported in the Management's
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section of this report.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments ona line-item
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as re-appropriations of fund
balance in the subsequent year, Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as fund balance,
assigned to other purposes at year-end.

6. Accounting System and Reports

The District's financial statements are presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds and a
government-wide presentation is also included. These funds and government-wide statements are
explained in "Notes to the Basic Financial Statements," Note 1.
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7. Financial Reporting

~ The District was awarded the Association of School Business Officials Internationals' (ASBO)
Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting Award (COE) for excellence in the preparation and
issuance of our fiscal year-end 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). This was the
fifteenth consecutive year that the Certificate of Excellence was awarded to the District. A copy of the
Certificate of the Excellence in Financial Reporiing Award has been included in our 2020 CAFR.

The Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting Program was designed by ASBO International to
enable school business officials to achieve a high standard of financial reporting. The award, the highest
recognition for school district financial operations offered by ASBO, is only conferred to school systems
that have met or exceed the standards of the program. By preparing and presenting a CAFR, the District
has validated the credibility of its school system's operations, measured the integrity and technical
competence of the business staff, assisted in strengthening our presentations for bond requests, and
provided professional recognition.

The Cerfificate is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual
financial report continues to meet the Programs' requirements, and we are submitting it to ASBO fo
determine its eligibility for the fiscal year 2019/2020 certificate.

The District also was awarded the Meritorious Budget Award by ASBO International, recognizing
excellence in school budget presentation.

8. Other Information

Independent Audit: State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or
registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Wiss & Company, LLP was appointed by the
District. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed
to meet the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and State Treasury Circular Letter OMB 15-08. The
auditors' report on the basic financial statements, required supplementary information, and the other
supplementary information are included in the financial report. The auditors’ reports related specifically

to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this report.
9. Acknowledgments

The District would like to thank and acknowledge the membess of the School Board and District staff
for their hard work and dedication in providing quality education, setting high academic standards, high
expectations, and equal access to programs that provide and motivate a vatiety of interests and abilities
for every student based on his or her necds. The District would also like to thank the students, parents,
and Newark Community for their continued support and belief that we will improve the quality of
education for every child in every school throughout the entire District.

Respectfully submitted, :
.‘.-—?‘W : M‘—. | l/\/
f\“\"v/L—\(/MVL o - :

Roger Leén '} Valerie V. Wilson
Superintendent School Business Administrator
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Independent Auditors® Report

Honorable President and Members
of the Board

Newark Board of Education

Newark, New Jersey

County of Essex

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Newark Board of Education,
County of Essex, New Jersey (the “District™), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; audit
requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey;
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards and requirements require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement,
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

“We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the District as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows, thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s
discussion and analysis, schedule of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability-PERS,
schedule of District pension contributions-PERS, schedule of the State’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability associated with the District-TPAF, schedule of the District’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability-Board of Education Employees’ Pension Fund of Essex County, schedule of District
contributions-Board of Education Employees’ Pension Fund of Essex County, schedule of the State’s
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability associated with the District and changes in the total OPEB
liability and related ratios — Public Employee’s Retirement System and Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
and budgetary comparison information as presented in the table of contents be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements, Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context, We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information such as the
combining and individua! fund financial statements, school leve! schedules, long-term debt schedules and the
schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Caost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit
Policy for Recipients of Federal Granis, State Grants and State Aid, respectively, and the other information,
such as the introductory and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The school based budget schedules, combining and individual fund financial statements, long term debt
schedules and the schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements, Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the school based budget schedules, combining and individual fund financial
statements, long term debt and the schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 4, 2021
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matiers,
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal

control over financial reporting and compliance.

Scott A. Cletland
Licensed Public School Accountant
Na. 1049

é/xu« o
WISS & COMPANY, LLP

February 4, 2021
Florham Park, New Jersey
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis



Newark Board of Education
Newark, New Jersey

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2020

As management of the Newark Board of Education (“the District”), we offer readers of the
District’s financial statements this narrative discussion, overview, and analysis of the
financial activities of the District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented, in conjunction with additional information that
we have firnished in our letter of transmittal.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary
Information specified in the Govemmental Accounting Standard Board’s (GASB) Statement
No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State
and Local Governments. Certain comparative information between the current fiscal year
and the prior fiscal year is required to be presented in the MD&A.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic
financial statements. The District’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic
financial statements, This document also contains required and other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. '

Government-wide financial statements. The govermment-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner
similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the assets, deferred outflows of
resources, deferred inflows of resources and liabilities of the District, with the difference
between the four reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving
or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the net position of the District
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this staternent for some items that
will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., eamed but unused vacation and
sick leave).

The govemment-wide financial statements ar included as schedules A-1 and A-2 Schedule
A-1 and A-2 of this report.
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Fund financial statements. A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
District, like other state and local govemments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the
District can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds, Govemmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as govemmental activities in the govemnment-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, govemmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may
be useful in evaluating govemment’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of govemmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for govemmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the govemmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between govemnmental funds and
governmental activities.

The District maintains three individual govemnmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the govemmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance for the general fund, special revenue
fund and capital projects fund, all of which are considered to be major funds.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and special revenue
fund. Budgetary comparison statements have been provided as required supplementary
_ information for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate compliance with
this budget.

The basic govermental fund financial statements are included as schedules B-1, B-2 and B-3
of this report.

Proprietary funds. The District maintains two proprietary fund types, enterprise and
internal service. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-
type activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. The District uses enterprise
funds to account for the operations of its food service program, regional day school and
futures after school program, all of which are considered to be major funds of the District.
Internal service funds are used as an accounting device to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the District’s various functions. The District uses two internal service funds
to account for services provided to all the other funds of the District relating to self-insurance
and its warehouse, both of which are considered to be major funds of the District. The
intemal service funds have been included within the governmental activities in the
govemment-wide financial statements. Proprietary funds provide the same type of
information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The basic
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proprietary fund financial statements are included as schedules B-4, B-5 and B-6 of this
report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the govenmental entity. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-
wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support
the District’s own programs.

The District utilizes a trust fund to account for resources related to its unemployment
compensation claims and private-purpose scholarship funds, The District uses agency funds
to -account for resources held for student activities, health benefits and payroll related
liabilities. The fiduciary fund financial statements are presented as schedules B-7 and B-8 of
this report.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential for a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 46-96
of this report.

Required Supplementary Information (RSD).- The District is required to present
certain supplementary information for its participation in the Public Employees’
Retirement System (“PERS™), Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (“TPAF”), the Board
of Education Employee’s Pension Fund of Essex County and Other Post Employee
Benefits (OPEB) related to PERS and TPAF. Schedules of the District’s proportionate
share of the PERS net pension liability, contributions made to this program, schedule of
the State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability related to TPAF, schedule of
the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability Board of Education
Employee’s Pension Fund of Essex County, schedule of the State’s proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability associated with the District and changes in the total OPEB liability
and related ratios — PERS and TP AF are reported as required supplementary information
and can be found on pages 99-103 of this report and additional RSI related to the general
fund and special revenue fund budgetary comparisons is included on pages 106-124 of
this report.

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with
governmental funds, enterprise funds and internal service funds are presented immediately
following the notes to the financial statements. Combining and individual fund statements
and schedules can be found on pages 126-347 of this report.
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Financial Highlights
Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $314,482,368 at the close of 2020.
The following table provides a summary of net position relating to the District’s
governmental and business-type activities at June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Net Position
Governmental Business-type
Activities - A&tivltim Total
2020 2019 21020 2019 2020 2019

Current and other assets s 112,534,715 § 135074678 § 5559249 § 5351213 § 118,093,964 % 140,425,881
Capitat assets, net 695,990,758 7l9,03%)_23 £.056,449 1,408,331 697,047,207 720,438,154
‘Total assets 208,525473 854,104,701 6,615,698 6,759,544 815,141,174 860,864,245
Deferred outllow of resources 54,174,862 65,883,244 54,174,862 65,883,244
Liabilities:

Other liabilities 132,429.434 127,845,636 1.374,107 1,789,952 133,803,541 129,635,588

Long term lisbilities 322,457,138 341,657,500 o 322,457,138 341,057,500
Total liabililies 454,886,572 468,903,136 1,374,107 1,789,952 456,260,679 470,653,088
Deferred inflow of resources 98 572 986 99,844,906 98,572,986 99,844,906
Net position:
Net investment in
" capitat assels 678,522,632 Fo6,281,121 1,056,449 1,121,840 679,979,082 707402561
Restricted 26,099,162 53,400,859 26,099,162 53,400,859
Unrestricted {deficit) 53951781,01 2) (408,442,077} 4,185,142 3,847,752 (391 ,595,876) (404,594 325)
Total net position 3 309,240,777 §  351,239903 % 5241591 § 4960592 % 314,482,368 5 356,209.495

The decrease in current and other assets is related to the decrease in cash which was the
result of decreased revenues, specifically the decrease to miscellaneous revenue related to
the prior year sale of property that was previously transferred to the Newark Housing
Authority.

The decrease in capital assets, net and the net position - net investment in capital assets is
mainly due to current year depreciation exceeding capital asset additions.

The largest portion of the District’s net position is its net investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, construction-in progress, buildings and improvements, and machinery,
equipment, and vehicles), net of depreciation and less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that are still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide
services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the District’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the District’s net position represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining (deficit) balance of
unrestricted net position reflects long-term obligations, such as compensated absences and
net pension liabilities, which are not offset by any assets.
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The decreases in the deferred outflow of resources and long-term liabilities, as well as the
decrease in the deferred inflow of resources, is primarily the result of the decrease in the
net pension liability and related inflows and outflows recorded on the full accrual
financial statements, recorded under Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 71, Pension Transition Jor Contributions
Made Subsequent 1o the Measurement Date — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.

The main reason for the decrease in restricted net position is due to the District generating
less excess surplus in the current year and utilizing more capital reserve funds than were
deposited.

District activities. The key elements of the District’s changes in net position for the years
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Changes in Net Position

Governmends! Business-type
Activities . Activities Tatal
1016 1019 00 1049 010 019

Revennes:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 1L s 108175 § 61043 5§ 616329 § 7561462 § 8,224 504
Operating grants and conributions 154,542,421 153264800 18,247,663 2015113 173,290,086 175,340,033
Cagital grants and contributions 984,720 17,559,964 914,120 17,559,964
General revenses:

Property taxes 135,002 884 132944004 135,600,384 132,944,004
Federal and state sid not restricted lo 2

specific purpose 546,944,086 961,819,799 946,944 086 561,819,799
Ezmings on investments 1,924,585 313051 1,924,685 3,130,913
Miscellancons 2044 8294472 i11,580 178,245 7156358 £965317
Tolal revenues 1,248,304,605 12062017 2508967 28,162,807 1,273,394, 281 1,307.984,534
Expenses: .
Instructional services 490.262,754 SMIM,342 490,262,754 $H4370,542
Stppart services SIBIG56T 490,236,156 SIL165,6M 400,136,536
Spestal Schools 3,908,901 4,115,563 1,508,561 4,115,563
Charter Schools 173.030,308 253,641,827 17030308 253641,627
Inictesi on long-teren debt 81,097 704,206 11,097 704,206
Business-Type Activities nsngn 3057063t 29510617 10,570,631
Tota! expenses 1,285,598 131 1208094 29520677 3050631 3 15,121,408 1303618 715
(Decrease) Increast in pet position (37,294,126 6553633 (4433,001) {2,207,824) [IR7INY)] 4,345,809
Transfers {4.705,000) (12000000 4705800 2200000 - -
Change in net position {41,999,128) 4353633 N5 (1824) {dLnm 4,345,809
Net pasition - beginaing 351,239.903 346,886,270 4,969,592 4971416 356.209.495 351,861,686

Nel position - ending § 300240777 S MIZNSM § SIS S 4568502 § JMAIER § 16209495

Charges for services decreased approximately $660,000 or 8.06%, mainly as a result of a
slight decrease in revenues in the enterprise fund for regional day school tuition as the
District received less students.

Capital grants and contributions decreased approximately $16.6 million or 94.79%, as a
result of the decrease in state revenues based upon current year construction activity
related to New Jersey Schools Development Authority projects.
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Federal and state aid decreased approximately $14.9 million or 1.55%, as a result decreased
OPER contributions made by the State on. behalf of the District.

Earnings on investments decreased approximately $1.2 million or 38.5% as a result of the
falling interest rates on their bank accounts with several banks due to market conditions.

Under New Jersey reporting guidelines, many programs that could be considered
instructional programs are categorized under support services such as tuition paid for special
education students placed in private or regional day schools and library/media services.
Health benefits; at the option of the District, paid on behalf of employees, including
instructional, may be charged under the support services category and not by program and
function code.

Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related matters.

Revenue by Source - Governmental Activities

Federaland State Charges for
aid not restricted. SEervices
to specific 0.10%
pUrposes. Operating grants
76.90% TNt and cqnlribulions
£ 13.03%

Property taxes

. 10.56%
Other general Capital Grants
fevenues d
339 ane
itk Contributions
06.07%

Governmental funds. The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the District’s financing requirements. The fund balance is
divided between restricted balances and unassigned balances. The District has designated
portions of the unassigned fund balance’ to carmark resources for the payment of certain
government-wide liabilities that are not recognized in the govemnmental funds.

General Fund, The general fund is the main operating fund of the District. The total
unassigned fund balance deficit is ($7,634,406), while the total fund balance is
$17,562,342. P.L. 2003, ¢.97 provides that in the event state school aid payments are not
made until the following school budget year, districts must record the last state aid
payments as revenue, for budget purposes only, in the current school year. The bill
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provides legal authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the current
budget year. For governmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that
recognition should be symmetric, i.e. if one govemnment recognizes as asset, the other
government recognizes a liability. Since the State is recording the last two state aid
payments in the subsequent fiscal year, the school district cannot recognize the last two
state aid payments in its GAAP financial statements. Due to the timing differences of
recording the last two state aid payments, the General Fund balance and the Special
Revenue Fund (deficif) balance do not alone indicate that the District is facing financial
difficulties. In fact, if the last state aid payments were received as planned, the District
would not have a deficit in either the unassigned general fund or special revenue fund
total fund balance as the last state aid payments exceed the reported deficits.

Special Revenue Fund. The special revenue fund is used to track the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specific purposes,
other than debt service or capital projects. Revenues for the current year increased
approximately $4.6 million due to increase in local, state and federal grants, specifically
the increases in local Verizon, City of Newark East Side Library, Victoria Foundation,
and Supplemental Education Services ASYDP grants, state Preschool Education Aid and
Advanced Computer Science grants and federal Title I, Title 1 SIA and Title I
Reallocation aid. Expenditures for the current year increased approximately $5.8 million
mostly due to increased support services offset by decreases in facilities acquisition and
construction services and charter school expenses.

Capital Projects Fund. The capital projects fund is used to account for and report
financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to an expenditure for
capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and
other assets (other than those financed by proprietary funds). There were expenditures of
$8,756,225 in the current fiscal year compared to expenditures of $18,483,671 in the
prior year. This is mainly attributable to the decreased construction work partially due to
the timing of jobs where the majority of the work was completed in the prior fiscal year
as well as the delay in some projects at the end of the current fiscal year due to
restrictions from the COVID-19 pandemic.,

The following schedule presents a summary of the General Fund and Special Revenue Fund
revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and the increases and decreases in relation
to the prior year. The Capital Projects Fund has been excluded as amounts vary substantially
from year to year.

Revenues
Year Ended June 30,2020
Percent {Decrease) [ncrease Percent of

Revenue Amount of Total " from2019 {Decrease) Increase
Local sources by 144,015,072 1240% $ (3,355,191) 2128 %
State sources 1,018,228,046 §2.30 39,936,906 4.08
Federal sources 61,279.421 530 {1,741,715) 2,17
Total by 1,223,522,539 100.000 % % 34,234,000 0.03 %
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The decrease in revenue from local sources of approximately $3.4 million is mainly the result
of a decrease in miscellaneous revenue due to the District receiving less funds for the sale of
buildings from the Housing Authority.

The increase of approximately $39.9 million of state sources is attributable mainly to
increased General State Aid of approximately $24.7 million, a new award of Emergency Aid
of approximately $3.9 million and an increase in On-behalf TPAF Pension and Medical of
approximately $7.9 million.

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund and Special Revenue Fund
expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 and the increases and decreases in
relation to the prior year. The Capital Projects Fund has been excluded as amounts vary
substantially from year to year.

Expenditures
" Year Ended June 30, 2020
- Percent Increase (Decrease) Percent of
Expenditures Amount of Total From 2018 Increase (Decrease}
Current expenditures:
Direct lnstruction $ 278,716,863 243 % § 5,345,051 196 %
Suppori Services 684,653,083 55.00 53,553,264 8.49
Special schools 3,011,916 0.4 (265,704) {8.11)
Charter schools 273,030,308 2197 19,388,681 7.64
Capital Outlay 244330 0.02 . 244,330 10000
Debt service:
Principal 2,588,894 0.21 (1,014,254 : (28.15)
Interest 453,148 0.04 (10,422) (13.45)
Total §  1,242,698,542 100.00% 3 77,180,946 6.62 %

The decrease in debt service is the result of decreases in the current year principal and interest
payments made pertaining to the energy savings improvement plan leases, as well as
principal payments on the other technology equipment capital lease.

The increase in direct instruction is the result of increased salary expenditures due to
contractual increases.

The increase in support services is mainly attributable to the $7.9 million increase in on-
behalf TPAF pension and medical expenditures, an approximate increase of $10.4 million
for the purchase of textbooks due to the District purchased new textbooks during the
current year, an increase of $2.3 million in attendance and social work salaries due to an
increase in the workforce and the number of individuals employed at the District during
fiscal year 19/20, an increase of $8.1 million in salaries for the required maintenance for
school facilities due to due to the ongoing renovations to the Newark Vocational School
'in the current year and an increase in the per diem rates contributed to the increase in the
maintenance salary and wage increase in the 19/20 school year, an increase of
approximatety $17.1 million in custodial services an increase in workforce and the
ongoing renovations at Newark Vocational School and an approximate increase of $11.5
million in unallocated benefits due to an increase in unemployment which occurred with
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the COVID-19 pandemic as there were employees who elected to take a leave of absence
after the COVID-19 outbreak and the District changing their health benefit contracts to a
new policy during the 19/20 fiscal year, resulting in an increase in the health benefits in
the current year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The District budget is prepared according to New Jersey Statutes. The most significant
budgeted fund is the general find. During the fiscal year, there were several differences
between the original budget and the final amended budget as a result of transfers being
applied to certain line items. These transfers were made between line items as part of the
normal process as permitted by State guidelines. Readers should refer to Section C of the
financial report for comparisons between actual and budgeted amounts.

Described below are explanations for variations in revenues and expenditures for those lines
where the modified budgeted amounts differ from the original budget by more than
$2,000,000 and 10%.

Revenues

¢ The modified budget for Emergency Aid increased from the original budgeted
amounts by approximately $4.0 million or 100% as a result of the award of the funds
subsequent to the start of the fiscal year.

Expenditures

e The modified budget for Regular Programs — Instruction — Purchased professional-
educational services decreased from the original budgeted amounts by approximately
$3.0 million or 32.79% as a result of the funds being reallocated to different account
lines in the current year as less educational professional services were actually needed
in the 19/20 school year than originally anticipated.

e The modified budget for Improvement of Instruction Services/Instructional staff —
salaries of Other Professional Staff — increased from the original budgeted amounts
by approximately $4.8 million or 148% due to an increase in the workforce and the
number of individuals employed at the District during the current fiscal year.

« - The modified budget for Educational media services/ school library — Supplies and
Materials — decreased from the original budgeted amounts by approximately $2.4
million or 97% due to a transfer to required maintenance for building repairs required
to repair the District's facilities. The funds were reallocated and repurposed as
necessary during the year.

e The modified budget for Custodial Services — Rental of land, buildings — non-lease
purchase decreased from the original budgeted amount by approximately $2.6 million
or 26.5% as a result of funds transferred out of the rental account line and used for
buildout of additional floors at one of the District's buildings (765 Broad Street).

33



e The modified budget for Undistributed Expenditures — Student Transportation
Services — Contracted Services (special education)-vendor increased from the original
budgeted amounts by approximately $13.7 million or 100% as the in-district
transportation services are no longer provided by the ESC commission.

e The modified budget for Undistributed Expenditures — Student Transportation
Services — Contracted Services (Special Education) -~ ESC decreased from the
original budgeted amounts by approximately $13.8 million or 48.3%. This was due to
the in-district transportation services no longer being provided by the Commission.

o The modified budget for Facilities acquisition and construction services —
construction services increased from the original budgeted amounts by approximately
$3.4 million or 100.6%, as a result of funds being reallocated for capital repairs and
construction services in order to continue renovations on the Newark Vocational
School during the current fiscal year. Initially the line was budgeted based on last
year's actual construction services, however, more funds were required during the
current year.

e The modified budget for Required Maintenance — salaries increased from the original

budgeted amounts by approximately $7.6 million or 56.9%. This was due to the

. planned renovations to the Newark Vocational School as well as an increase in per
diem rates.

e The modified budget for Required Maintenance — general supplies increased from the
original budgeted amounts by approximately $2.1 million or 108.8%. This was due to
anticipating needing more supplies to complete the planned renovations to the
Newark Vocational School.

Described below are explanations for variations in revenues and expenditures for those lines
where the modified budgeted amounts differ from the actual amounts by more than
$2,000,000 and 10%.

Revenues

e Actual On-behalf TPAF pension and reimbursed social security contributions are
unbudgeted revenue sources. Consequently, actual revenues as well as the related
expenditures exceeded the final budgeted amount by approximately $105.4
million.

Expenditures

e Actual Undistributed Expenditures — Regular Programs — Instruction — Purchased
professional-educational  services were less than the modified budget by
approximately $3.59 million or 137.4% due to the District not using the purchased
professional educational services as originally planned to as-the District shifted to
remote teaching during the 19/20 school year due to the COVID-19 outbreak, thus
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resulting in a decrease in educational services and seminars provided utilized during
the year. '

e Actual Undistributed Expenditures — Regular Programs — Instruction — General

Supplies were less than the modified budget by approximately $3.11 million or

37 19% as the District used fewer supplies in the 19/20 school year due to the District

shifting to remote learning in March 0f 2020 through the end of the school year

because of the COVID-19 outbreak. Therefore, less physical school supplies for

- regular inswuction and leaming were needed for approximately 3.5 months of the
19/20 school year.

e Actual Undistributed Expenditures — Instruction - Tuition to county special services
and regional day schools were less than the modified budget by approximately $3.01
million or 101.19% due to less students attending these out of district schools in the
current year than originally anticipated. These tuition costs vary from year to year
depending on which schools the students are enrolling in based on their specific
needs.

e Actual Undistributed Expenditures ~ Support services — General administration —
Communications/telephone were less than the modified budget by approximately
$2.35 million or 79.88% as less communication costs were incurred in the current
year than originally anticipated due to the COVID-19 outbreak as the District was
remote/virtual for approximately 3.5 months of the 19/20 school year.

e Actual Undistributed Expenditures ~ Required maintenance for school facilities —
Cleaning, repair and maintenance services were less than the modified budget by
approximately $2.93 million or 70.51% as less expenses were incurred in the current
year than originally anticipated due to the COVID-19 outbreak as the District was
remote/virtual for approximately 3 months of the 19/20 school year. :

e Actual Undistributed Expenditures — Unallocated benefits - employee benefits —
Worker's compensation were less than the modified budget by approximately $2.1
million or 29.77% due to a decrease in the insurance premiums as majority of the
District was mandated to work from home for approximately 3.5 months of the 19/20
school year due to the COVID-19 outbreak.

The above analysis is on a budgetary basis and does not include the results of encumbered
funds.
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Capital Assets Administration

Capital Assets. -As of June 30, 2020, the District has capital assets, net of accurnulated
depreciation, of $697,047,207, including land, school buildings, machinery, equipment,
vehicles and conswuction in progress noted as follows:

Governmentat Business-type
Activities Activilies Tetsl
W pi 1 W W08 00 119

Non Depreciable:

Land § w4488 5 M40 § 26452458 5 26450499
Construction in proagress 13378058 1483055 BI85 14130258
Depreciable;

Buiidings ané building improvemetts 946,114 561 40,126,839 946,114,561 940,126 839
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 19,1448 7205049 8§ 6090l 5 4064886 25,1754 11,360,835
Totak capital assets 1,225059,551 1,268,708, 502 6.038,01 £,064.886 13011860 LA4,T10.388
Accumitlated Bepreciation {520,088,193) {439,675479) (5,002,620 {4 543,846 {534,071 415} {494§13,525)
Total Ceptal Assts netof B
Acourmilated Depreciatian § 69SHI8 § MO S L0SA S LINBM §  6ITANN7 §  TISLAES

Additional detailed information on the Newark Board of Education’s capital assets can be
found in Note 4 to the basic financial statements.

Debt Administration and Long-term Liabilities

The District’s long-term liabilities at June 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows for governmental
activities: ‘

Governmental
Activities
2020 . 2019
Capital Lease Obligations $ 19,727,452 $ 22,510,346
Deferred Pension Liability : 1,289,875 1,650,414
Compensated absences 40,749,326 37,188,440
Total long-term liabilities __§ 61,766,653 $ 61,349,200

The District also has a net pension liability of $264,901,511 and $283,850,988 at June 30,
2020 and 2019, respectively.

Additional detailed information on the Newark Board of Education’s long-term liabilities can
be found in Note 5 to the basic financial statements.
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

e The District budgeted $21,056,284 of its 2020 unassigned fund balance to partially
fund the 2020/2021 operations, a decrease of $36,205,551 from the prior year.

o The tax levy increased to $138,314,942 for the 2020/21 fiscal year. This was an
increase of $2,712,058 from the 2019/20 levy.

e The District considered the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, potential state aid
reductions, and CARES Act grant funding in preparing the District’s 2020-21
fiscal year budget.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the District’s budget for the 2020-2021
fiscal year. The reduction and/or stabilization of state aid and the increase in students
attending charter schools has caused difficulty in balancing, the District’s budgets and is
expected to be more difficult in the future years.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Newark Board of
Education’s finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to the School Business
Administrator, 765 Broad Street, Newark, New Jersey 07102.
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Basic Financial Statements



Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide a financial overview of the
District’s operations. These financial statements present the financial position and
operating results of all governmental activities and business-type activities as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2020.



Newark Board of Education

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020
Governmentsl Business-type
Activities Activities ‘Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents g 71,471,199 5 2,884,165  $ 74,361,964
Cash hetd with fiscal agents 1,474,097 1,474,097
Internal balances 195,293 (195,293) -
Accounts teceivable 30,588,522 2,458,553 33,047,075
Inventories 208,114 411,824 612,935
Restricted:

Cash end cash cquivalents 5,509,941 5,509,941

Cash hetd with fiscal agents 3,087,952 3,087,952
Capital assets, non-depreciable 259,830,517 259,830,517
Capitak assets, depreciable, net 436,160,241 1,056,449 437,216,650
Totat assets 808,523,473 6,615,698 815,141,171
Deferred Outflow of Resources
Pension deferrals 54,174,862 54,174,862
Total assets and deferred outflow of resources 862,700,335 6,615,698 869,316,033
Liabilities )
Accounts payable and other liabilities 38,763,868 1,213,360 39,877,228
Accrued liabilitics 17,371,578 58,909 17,430,487
Accrued interest paysbie 262,429 262,429
Iniergovernmental payables:

State 177318 3717318

Federal 47,970 47,970
Motes paysble 25,000,000 25,000,000
Accrued liabilities for insurance claims 31,451,060 31,451,060
Unearned revenue 14,944,185 101,838 15,046,023
Net pension Hability 264,904,511 264,901,511
Current portion of Yanp-term cbligations 4,211,026 4,211,026
Noncurrent postion of tong-term obligations 57,555,627 57,555,627
Total liabilities 454,886,572 1,374,107 456,260,679
Deferred Inflow of Resounrces
Pension deferrals . 08,572,986 98,572,986
Tota} Habilities and deferred inflow of resources 553,459,558 1,374,107 554,833,665
Net pasition
Net investment in capital assels 678,922,633 1,056,449 £79,979,082
Restricted for:

Capita! projects 202,414 902414

Capital reserve 5,509,941 5,509,941

Excess surplus - current year 2,305,352 2,305,352

Excess surplus - prior year 17,381,455 17,381,455
Unrestricted (deficit) (395,781,018) 4,185,142 (391,595,876)
Total net position : 5 309,240,777 $ 5245591 8§ 314,482,368

See accompanying notes io basic Sfinancial stalements.
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Governmental Funds



Newark Board of Education
Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet

Juzne 30, 2020
Maior Fundy
Sperial Capital Tata)
General Revenue Frojects Governimental
Fund Fond Fund Fundy
Assets .
Cash and cash equivalents $ 37,288,082 3 2,246,238 £ 870048 § 40,404,388
Accounis receivable:
State 3,481,227 25,908 1.449,087 4,956223
Federal 7,309,798 7,398,798
Other 668,472 1,991,088 2,659,560
Interfand 19,343,733 15,343,753
Resmicted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5,509,941 5,509,941
Cash held with fiscal agents 1,837,248 1,250,704 3,087,952
Total assets b} 66,291 475 § 11309213 $_ 5360527 $ 83361613
Liabilities and Fund Balances
1iabiligies:
Accounls payable S 19635201 s 3712930 £ 242458 $ 23,590,589
Accried liabiliies 4,066,835 203,206 4,270,041
Notes payable 23,000,000 25,000,000
Tntergovemmental payahies:
Siate 377,318 377,318
Federal 47,970 47,970
Interfunds payable 234220 3,341,299 3,575,518
Other linbifities 21,097 27,097
Uneamned revenue 14,432,851 311,234 14,944,185
Total liabilities 48,719,133 13,008,595 1,094,551 71,432,719
Fund balances:
Restricted for:
Excess surplus « current year 2,305,352 2,305,352
Excess surpius - prior year 17,381,455 17,381,453
Capital reserve 5,509,941 5,509,941
Capital projects 1,463,936 1,465,936
Unassigned (deficity (1,634 406} {7.499,382) {15,133,788)
Total fund batances (deficit) 17,562,342 (7.499,382) 1,465,956 11,328,896
Tatal Hsbifities and find balances b 66.291 475 $ 11305.213 ¥ 5360927 5 83361615

Amounfs reported far govermmental activities in the
slatement of net position (4-1) are different because:

Total fund balances per sbove

Capital assets used in governmental aetivities are not financial resources
and therefors are not repotted in the funds. The cost of the assets is
$1,225,059,531 and the accumulated depreciation is $529,068,793.

Deferred pension costs in governmental activities are not financial
resonrces and are therefore not reported in the funds,

Net pension liability is not due and payable in the carrent pedod and
therefore is ot reported as a lability in the funds.

Accmed pension contributions for the June 30, 2020 plan year end are not
poid with cutrent ie T and are therefors pot reporfed as a
liability in the funds, but are included in accounts payable in the
govemment-wide statement of net position. .

Intema! service fands ar¢ used by the District to charge the costs of the
warehouse and self-insurarice programs to the individual finds. The
assets and liabilities of the intemal service fands are included with
govemnmental activites,

Liabidities, including capital leases payable, deferred pension lishility apd
compensafed absences are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are pot reported as liabilities in the funds.

Liability for health benefit lishility is not due and pavable in the current
period due to two month lag.

Accrued interest on Jong-term debt is not dus and payable in the current
period and therefore is not reported as a liability in the funds.

Net position of govemnmental activities

See accompanying notes ja bosic finoeial siatements,
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3 11,528,896

695,990,758

(44,398,124)

{264,901,311)

(15,145,133)

1,206,510

(61,166,653)

(13,101,537

(262,429}

§_ 309240777




Newark Board of Education

Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Bafances

Revenues:
Local sources:
Local tax fevy
Tuition
Interest en investments
Miscellansous
Totat local suces

State sources
Federal sources
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current expenditures:
Instrugtion
Suppon services;
Instruction
Attendance/social work
Health services
Support services
Improvement of instruction
Educational media services / school library
Insteuctional stafl training
Genera! adminiswration
Schioo] administration
Central services
Administration information 1echnology
Required maintenance of plant services
Custodial services
Security
Student transportation
Unallocated benefils
On-behalf TPAF pension, medical and disability
Reimbursed TPAF social security
conributions
Specint schools-current
Chanter schoots-current
Capital outley
Debt service:
Principal
Entercst
Total expenditures

{Deficiency) axcess of revenues (under) over expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
City of Newark debi issuance
Transfers in
Transfers out

Tatal other Ananting sources {uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balances, July ¥ (deficit}
Fund balances, June 30 {deficit)

Year ended June 30, 2020
_Maijor Funds
Special Capital Total
Generzl Revenue Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 135602884 § 135,602,884
1331051 1,331,031
1,828,661 5 35,271 1,863,932
4006782 § 1,245,714 5,252,496
142,769,358 1,245,754 35271 144,050,343
922,158,313 96,059,733 9{4,720 1.019,142,766
4052447 57226 974 61279421
1.068,980,118 154,542,421 949,991 1,224 472,530
241935335 30,781,528 278,716,863
40,054,426 40,054,424
£1,015870 11,015,870
9,225,661 9,225,661
49,339,478 110,372,619 159,712,097
33,926,263 33,926,263
1,392,872 1,392,872
214 5% 214,659
9,067,530 9,067,530
22,216,008 22,276,008
11,467,317 11,467,317
10,173,850 10,173,850
33,489,794 33,489,794
65,487,122 65,487,722
14,021,593 14,024 593
34,325,658 34,325,658
123,390,837 123,390,837
82312819 82,312,819
23,098,107 23,098,107
3,011,916 3018316
268 338,174 4,592,134 373,030,308
244,330 8,756,225 9,000,555
2,588,894 2,588,894
453,148 453,148
},096,607,931 146,090,611 B.756,225 1,251 454,767
(27,627,813} 8451810 §7,806,214) (26,982,237}
3,098,749 3,098,749
£3,858,065 298,17 16,849,182
{7.686,117) {13.847.7%) (20271} {21.554,i82)
§,181.948 (10.866.677) 3078478 (1,606.251)
(21,445,365} (2,414,867 (4,721.756) {28,588,488)
39,008,207 (5,084,515) 6,193,692 40.117384
$ 17.562342 S {(7499382) § 1,465,936 $ 11528896

The reconeiliation of the fund balances of govermmenta) funds to the ne1 position of governmental activities in the statement of

activities [s presented in the atcompanying schedule (B-3).

Ste accompanying noles to basic financial siatements.
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Newark Board of Education
Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

B-3

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2020

Tolal net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2)
Amounis reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital additions are reporied in governmenta! funds as expenditures. However, in the stelement of’
activities, the costs of those pssets are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which depreciation expense and the loss on disposal exceeded capital additions in
the period.

Depreciation expense
Capital additions
Loss on disposal of capital assets

Repayment of capital lease principat is an expenditure in the govemments) finds, but the repayment reduces
Iong-term liabilities in 1he statement of ne1 position and is not reported in the statement of activities.

Internal services finds are used by the District to charge the costs of the warchouse and sel-insurance programs
to the individual funds. The activities of these funds, sre included in the Statement of Activities.

Repayments of deferred pension liabilities are expenditures in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term Habilities in the statement of net position and is not reported in the statement of activities.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financia) resources and
thetefore are not reporied s expenditares in governmental funds,
Pensioh expense

In the staterment of activities, interest on long term debi is acened, regardless of when due. In the governmental
funds, interest is reported when due.

In the statement of activities, certain opervting expenses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations) are
measured by the amounts eamed during the year. In the govemmental funds, however, expenditures
for these ilems are reported in the amount of financiaf resources used (paid).

Change in net position of governmental activities (A-2)

See accompanying notes 1o basic financial statements.
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$ (40,226,902)
17,216,500

(28,863)
23,039,265}

3,782,894
565,927

350,539
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28,051

(3,560,886)
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Newark Board of Education
Proprietary Funds

Statement of Net Position

June 30,2020

B4

Governmental
Business-Type Activities © Activity
Major Enterprise Funds Internal
Food Regional Day Futures After Service
Service School School Program Totals Funds
Assets
Current mssets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1015278 § 1,788,653 % 80234 § 2884165 §$3 1,073,411
Cash held with fiscal agents 1,474,097
Accounts receivable:
State 62,405 62,405
Federal 1,524,842 1,524,842
Other 31,900 839,406 871,306
Inventories 411,824 411,824 201,111
Total current assets 3,046,249 2,628,059 80,234 5,754,542 32,748,619
Capilal assets:
Machinery and equipment 5,878,767 180,304 6,059,071
Accumulated depreciation (4,930,549} {72,073) 5,002,622)
Tota! capital assets, net 948,218 - 108,231 1,056,449
Total assels 3,994,467 2,736,290 80,234 6,810,991 32,748,619
Liabilities
Current fiabilities:
Accounts payable 1,083,903 129,457 1,213,360 1,049
Accrued liabilities 27,660 31,249 58,909 31,451,060
Interfund payable 195,293 195,293
Uneamed revenue 101,838 101,838
Total current Liabilities 1,408,694 160,706 - 1,569,460 31,452,109
Net Position
Investment in capital assets 948,218 108,231 1,056,449
Restricled 533,807
Unrestricted 1,637,555 2,467,333 80,234 4,185,142 762,703
Total net position % 2585773 & 2575584 8 80,234 $ 5,241,591 3§ 1,296,510

See accompanying notes to basic financial siatements.
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Newark Board of Education
Proprictary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Position

B-5

Year ended June 30, 2020
Governmental
Business-Type Activitics Activity
Major Enterprisc Funds Internal
Foad Regional Day Futures Afier Service
Service School _School Program Totals Funds
Operating revenues:
Local sources:
Daily food sales - non-reimbursable programs $ 22,895 $ 22,895
‘Tuition $ 6,207,536 6,207,536
Miscellancous 102,750 8,830 111,580
“T'otal focal sources 125,645 6,216,366 6,342,011
Services provided to other funds $ 11,142,587
“Total eperating revenues 125,645 6,216,366 - 6,342,011 11,142,587
Operating expenses:
Salarics 8,208,260 3,943,295 12,151,553 1,003,636
Employee benefits 3,396,662 1,358,457 4,755,119 420,168
Purchased professional services 265,444 311,467 576,908
Other purchosed services 72,582 272,582
Encrgy 98,894 98,894
‘Transponation 38,319 38,319
Supplics and materials 2,149,365 48971 2,198,338 101,406
Insurance 9,112,203
Biepreciation 175,512 12,393 187,905
Cost of sales - reimbarsable program 9,189,539 9,189,539
Cost of sales - non-reimbursable program 10,782 10,782
Consteuction services 20,484 20,484
Misccllancous 2577 19,675 22252
‘Fotal operating expenses 23,670,720 5,851,957 - 29,522 677 10,637,413
Operating (loss} income (23,545,075} 364,409 - (23,180,666) - 505,174
Nonoperating revenues:
Statc sources:
State school luach program 226,082 226,082
Federal sources:
Fresh fruit ond vegetable program 318,725 318,725
School break fast program 4,949,993 4,949,99)
National school lunch program 9,099,191 9,099,191
Adfter schood sneck program 132,441 132,441
Food donation program 1,656,133 1.656,131
Summer food service program 465,632 465,632
Summer Food Service Program (COVID-t9 Emergency) 1,899,470 1,899,470
lavestment income 60,753
Total nonoperating revenues 18,747,665 18,747,665 60,753
{L.oss) income before transfers (4,797.410) 364,409 - (4,433,001} 565,927
Transfer in « board contribution 4,705,000 4,705,000
Change in net position {92.410) 364,409 - 271,999 565,927
‘Total net position - beginning 2,678,183 2211175 8§ 80,234 4,969,592 730,583 .
Total net position - ending $ 2585773 8§ 2575584 8 80234 S 5241501 8 1296510

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from services provided
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments for employee benefits
Payments 1o supplicrs
Payments for insurance
Net eash {used in} provided by operating activities

Cash Rows from noneapital financing activitiest
Cash received from state and federal reimbursements
Cash received from other funds
Cash received from food denation program
Cash received from board contribution

Net eash provided by {used in) noncapital financing activities ___ 24,140,332

Cash flows from capital and related fingncing activity-

Acquisition of capitat assets

Net cash (used in) capital and related financing aclivity

Cash flows from investing activity-
Cash received from investments
Net cash provided by investing mctivity
Net increase (decrease) in cash nnd cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Reconcilistien of operating (Joss) income to net cash

{used In) provided by operating activites:
Operating {loss) income

Adjustments to reconcile operating {loss) income to net cash

(used in) provided by operating uetivities:
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrense (increase) in accounts receivable - other
(Increase) in inventory
(Decrease) increase in accaunts payable
Increase in accrued linbilities
Nel cach (used in) provided by operating ectivities

Non-cash from nen capital financing activities

Newark Board of Education

B-6

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended June 30, 2020
Governmental
Business-Type Activities Aclivity
Major Enterprise Funds Internal
Food Regionat Day Futares After Service
Service School School Program Totals Funds
$ 11,142,587
$ 137877 § 5583228 $ 5,726,108
(8,207,512} (3,924,058 (12,131,570) (1,003,636)
(3,396,662) {1,358.457) (4,755,119 (420,168)
(12,532,992) {532,116} {13,065,108) {214,238)
(9,377.270)
(23.999.28%) (226,403) {24,225,692) 127,273
19,297,091 19,297,091
{1,593,537) L3 1,170 (1,592,367 {521)
1,731,978 1,731,978
4,705,000 4,705,000
1,170 24,141,702 {521)
(120,275 {2,23%) 122,514
(120,275} {2.239) (122,514)
60,753
60,753
20,958 (228,642) 1,170 {206,504} 187,507
994,310 2,017,295 79,064 3,090,665 30,885,904
$ 1015278 . 8 1,788,653 80234 3 2,884,165 3 31073411
§ {23,545075) § 364409 $ - §  (23.180666) 3 505,174
175,512 12,393 187,505
12,232 (628,138} {615,906}
(125,333) (125,333) (66,182)
(517.373) 5,696 {511,671} {1,252,607)
748 19,237 19,985 940,290
§ (23.090289) % (226403) § -8 (24225690 3 127,275

The District reccived $1,731,978 of food commadities from the U.S. Department of Agriculture for the year ended June 30, 2020.

See accompanying nofes 1o basic financial statements.,
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Newark Board of Education
Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

June 39, 2020

B-7

Held in trust for scholarships

See accompanying notes fo basic financial statements.
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Private -
Unemployment Purpose
Compensation  Scholarship “Agency
Trust Fund Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,564,488 428,844 29,310,212
Total assets 6,564,488 428,844 29,310,212
Liabilities
Payroll deductions and
withholdings payable 4,146,275
Summer escrow payroll payable 8,597,257
Accounts payable 1,085,519 '
Loans payable 15,572,941
Due to student groups 093,739
Total liabilities 1,085,519 29,310,212
Net Position A
Held in trust for unemployment claims $ 5478969
428,844




Newark Board of Education

Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Additions .
Contributions:
Board contributions
Employee contributions
Total additions

DPeductions
Unemployment payments
Total deductions

Change in net position

Net position - beginning of the year
Net position - end of the year

See accompanying rnotes fo basic financial statements.

Year ended June 30, 2020
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B-8

Unemployment Private-Purpose
Compensation Schelarship
Trust Fund

$ 2,207,274
734,261
2,941,535
2,792,792
2,792,792
148,743
5,330,226 & 428,844
$ 5478969 § 428,844




Newark Board of Education
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Newark Board of Education (“the District”) have been prepared
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”) as applied to governmental units, The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB™) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles.

The more significant of the District’s accounting policies are described below.

A, Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity consists of a) the primary government, b) organizations for which
the primary government is financially accountable, and c) other organizations for which the

nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion
would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on the notion of financial accountability.

A primary government is financially accountable for the organizations that make up its legal
entity. It is also financially accountable for legally separate organizations if its officials appoint
a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and either it is able to impose its will on
that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits
to, or to impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government, A primary government
may also be financially accountable for governmental organizations that are fiscally dependent
on it.

The District, as the primary government for financial reporting entity purposes, has oversight
responsibility and control over all activities related to the Newark Board of Education, in
Newark, New Jersey. The District receives funding from local, state, and federal government
sources and must comply with the requirements of these funding source entities.

The District has no component units that are required to be included within the reporting entity,
as set forth in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and

Financial Reporting Standards.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement

of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the District. For the most
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
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Newark Board of Education
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2020

1. Sammary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers, students
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided
by a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the Government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major proprietary funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements. The New Jersey Department of Education
(NJDOE) requires that all funds be reported as major, as it is considered important for public
interest and to promote consistency among District financial reporting in the State of New
Jersey. :

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The governmeni-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary
fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when carned and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met,

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period, For this purpose, the District considers all revenues to be available if they are
collected within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are

recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, expenditures
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Newark Board of Education
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Year ended June 30, 2020
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related to compensated absences, net pension liability, and deferred pension lability and certain
legal settlements, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, interest, and state aid associated with the current fiscal period are all considered
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal year.
All other revenues are considered to be measurable and available only when the District receives
cash,

The District has reported the following major governmental funds:

General Fund: The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or non-instructional
equipment, which are classified in the capital outlay subfund.

Special Revenue Fund: The District maintains one combined special revenue fund, which
includes the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than fiduciary funds or major capital
projects) that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes. :

Capital Projects Fund: The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial
resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to an expenditure for capital outlays,
including the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and other capital assets (other
than those financed by proprietary funds). The financial resources are derived primarily from
state aid and City funding,

The District reports the following major proprictary funds:

Enterprise Funds (Food Service and Regional Day School) The food service fund accounts for
all revenues and expenses pertaining to cafeteria operations. The food service fund is utilized to
account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost (i.e., expenses including depreciation and indirect
costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis are financed or
recovered primarily through user charges. The Regional Day School fund accounts for all
revenues and expenses in the operation of the school similar to a private business enterprise. The
District has an additional non-major proprietary fund, the Futures After School Program fund.
The Futures After School Program fund accounts for all revenues and expenses in the operation
of the schoo! and after-school program, respectively, similar to a private business enterprise. The
Futures After School Program is no longer in place at the District as of July 1, 2018.
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Internal Service Funds include the following:

Self-Insurance Fund: The self-insurance fund is used to cover the self-insured limits of the
various insurance policies for all funds.

Warehouse Fund: The warehouse fund provides goods to other departments. The purpese of
this fund is to achieve a level of efficiency and economy by purchasing items in bulk and
responding expeditiously to the needs of the schools and departments, ‘

Additionally, the District reports the following fund types:

Fiduciary Funds of the District include the unemployment compensation and private-purpose
scholarship trust funds and agency funds. The measurement focus of the Trust Funds are the
economic resources measurement focus. Agency funds are purely custodial (assets equal
liabilities) and thus do not involve measurements of results of operations. The following is a
description of the fiduciary funds of the District:

Trust Funds: The unemployment compensation and private-purpose scholarship funds are
accounted for in essentially the same manner as governmental funds. The unemployment
compensation trust fund is used to account for contributions from employees and the employer
(Newark Board of Education) and interest earned on the balance as well as payments to the State
for reimbursement of unemployment claims. The private-purpose scholarship fund is utilized to
provide scholarships to students and to account for the related transactions.

Agency Funds (Payroll Agency and Student Activity Fund): These agency funds are used to
account for the assets that the District holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency funds are
custedial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

As a general rule, the effect of internal activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) fees charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather
than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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Proprictary funds distinguish operating revenues and cxpenses from nonoperating items.

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and -

delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations, The
principal operating revenues of the District enterprise funds are charges for sales of food, tuition
and program fees, Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales,
adminisirative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Revenues and other governmental fund financial resources should be recognized in the
-accounting period in which they become both measurable and available. When an asset is
recorded in governmental fund financial statements, but the revenue is not available the
government should report a deferred inflow of resources until such time the revenue becomes
available.

Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual as, under New Jersey State Statute, a
municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount
voted upon or certified prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire
approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both
measurable and available. The District is entitled to receive moneys under the established
payment schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an “account receivable.”

The County Board of Taxation is responsible for the assessment of properties and the City Tax
Collector is responsible for collection of taxes. Assessments are certified and taxes are levied on
January 1; taxes are due February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1. Unpaid taxes are considered
delinquent the following January 1 and are then subject to lien.

D. Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general and special
revenue funds. The budgets are submitted to the County Office and the Commissioner for
approval. Budgets, except for the special revenue fund which is prepared using a non-GAAP
budgetary basis, are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of
budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are
defined as the lowest (most specific) level of details as established pursuant to the minimum
chart of accounts referenced in N.JLA.C.6A:23. The District must approve all budget
amendments, The District did make transfers during the year which are identified on schedules
B-5, C-1, C-1a and C-2. Some of the transfers made were in significant amounts, but all were in
the normal course of operations. Budgetary transfers were made during the current year in
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accordance with statutory guidelines. The over-expenditures related to on-behalf payments in
the general fund are due to the inclusion of the non-budgeted on-behalf payments made by the
State of New Jersey as District expenditures. These amounts are offset by related revenues and
as such do not represent budgetary over-expenditures.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control
device during the year. For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the
budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last two state aid payments
for budgetary purposes only and the accounting for the special revenue fund as noted below.
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting
budgetary basis, The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant
accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are
maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

E. Cash, Cash equivalents and investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, amounts on deposit, money market
accounts and short term investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Investments are stated at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, “decounting and
Financial Reporting for Ceriain Jnvestments and for External Investment Pools” and GASB
Statement No. 72 “Fair Value Measurement and Application.” The District classifies certificates of
deposit, which have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than twelve months
from the date of purchase, as investments and are stated at cost, All other investments, are stated at
fair value.

F. Interfund Receivables/Payables

Interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or
services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year.
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G. Inventories
Inventories, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund, are

recorded as an expense during the year of purchase. Inventories of the enterprise and internal
service funds are recorded as expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

The enterprise fund used the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method to account for inventories and .

inventories are valued at cost. Warehouse inventories are valued using average costs.

At June 30, 2020, the unused Food Donation Progfam commodities of $101,838 are reported as
unearned revenue in the Food Service Enterprise Fund.

H. Tuition

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs, The
charges are subject to adjustment when the final costs have been determined. Tuition charges for
the 2019-2020 fiscal year were based on rates established by the receiving District. These rates
are subject to change when the actual costs have been determined.

L Capital Assets

Capital assets, which includé land, building and building improvements, machinery and
equipment and construction in progress, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the Government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined
by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $2,000 and an estimated
useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or through
estimation procedures performed by an independent appraisal company. Land was valued at
assessed vatue based upon information received from the City of Newark. Donated capital assets
are valued at their acquisition vatue on the date of acquisition.

The costs of normal repairs and maintenance that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend the assets lives are not capitalized.

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. Property, plant and equipment of the

District are depreciated using the straight line method. The following estimated useful lives are
used to compute depreciation:
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Years
Machinery and equipment 2-20
Buildings ' 50
Building improvements 20
Vehicles 5-10

J. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumnption of net position that applies to a fiture period(s) and so will ot
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then, The District has one item
that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts related to pensions. In addition to
liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (reverue) until that time. The District has one item that qualifies for reporting in this
category, deferred amounts related to pensions.

K. Acerued Salaries and Wages

Certain District employees who provided services to the District over the ten-menth academic
year have the option to have their salaries evenly disbursed during the entire twelve-month year.
New Jersey statutes require that these earned but not disbursed amounts be retained in a separate
bank account. As of June 30, 2020, the amount earned by these employees but not disbursed was
$8,597,257 and is included in liabilities — summer escrow payroll payable in the Payroll Agency
fiduciary fund. ‘

L. Compensated Absences
A liability for compensated absences that is attributable to services already rendered and that is
not contingent on a specific event that is cutside the control of the employer and employee is

accrued as employees earn the rights o the benefits, The District uses the “vesting method” for
estimating its accrued sick and vacation leave liability.
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District employees earn vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the District’s existing
collective bargaining agrecments, In the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for
accumulated vacation. Sick leave benefits provide for ordinary sick pay and begin vesting with
the employee after one year of service.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the District is recorded in the Government-wide
financial statements and amounted to $40,749,326 at June 30, 2020, A liability for these
amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured at June 30, 2020, for
example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

M. Unearned Revenue

Uneamed revenue in the special revenue and capital project funds represents cash which has
been received, but is not yet earned and certain outstanding encumbrances in the special revenue
fund. Unearned revenue in the food service enterprise fund represents the value of unused
donated food commoadities.

N. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position, where
applicable, ‘

Q. Fund Balances

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions
(“GASB 54”) established fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily
on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources reported in governmental funds, Under GASB 54, fund balances in the governmental
funds financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting and
classified into the following five categories, as defined below:

1) Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent becausc they are either (a) not

in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

~ Assots included in this fund balance category include prepaid assets, inventories,
long-term receivables, and corpus of any permanent funds.
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2) Restricted - includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes
stipulated by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling
legislation.

3) Committed - includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
imposed by a formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making
authority. The District’s highest level of decision-making authority is the State
Executive Superintendent and formal action is taken by resolution at publicly held
meetings. Once commifted, amounts cannot be used for other purposes unless the
State Exccutive Superintendent revises or changes the specified use by taking the
same action (resolution) taken to originally commit these funds.

4) Assigned — amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but
do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent is expressed
by either the State Executive Superintendent or Business Administrator, to whom the
State Executive Superintendent has delegated the authority to assign amounts to-be
used for specific purposes, including the encumbering of funds.

5) Unassigned - includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications

" in the general fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been
assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to
specific purposes within the general fund, The general fund is the only fund that
reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. In the other governmental funds,
if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts resiricted,
committed or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary fo report a negative
unassigned fund balance. .

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. For the unrestricted
fund balance, the District first spends committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally,
unassigned funds. '

Of the $17,562,342 fund balance in the General Fund, $25,171,873 of assigned for year-end
encumbrances, $27,828,200 designated for subsequent years expenditures and the unassigned
portion of ($60,634,479) are included in the unassigned deficit of (§7,634,406), $5,509,941 has
been restricted for capital reserve, $2,305,352 has been restricted for excess surplus — current
year, and $17,381,455 has been restricted for prior year excess surplus — which has been
designated for subsequent year’s expenditures.
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The special revenue fund unassigned deficit fund balance in the amount of $7,499,382 is due to
preschool education funds not being recognized as revenue in the financial statements due to the
State’s deferral of the last two state aid payments. The capital projects fund balance in the
amount of $1,465,936 is restricted and available for use on capital projects in future years.

P. Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, deferred
inflows of resources and liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements. Net investment in capital assets comsists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any long-term debt used to build or acquire
the capital assets. Net positions are reported as restricted in the government-wide and fund
financial statements when there are limitations imposed on their use through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.

Q. Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

R. On-Behalf Payments

Revenues and expenditures of the general fund include payments made by the State of New
Jersey for social security contributions and post-retirement pension, medical and long-term
disability benefits for certified staff members of the New Jersey Teachers Pension and Annuity
Fund. Additionally, revenues and expenses related to on-behalf pension and OPEB contributions in
the government-wide financial statements have been increased by $102,987,041 to adjust for the full
accrual basis expense incurred by the State of New Jersey during the most recent measurement
period, The amounts are not required to be included in the District’s annual budget.

S. Regional Day School
The Regional Day School is operated by the District under a contract with the New Jersey State

Department of Education. The Regional Day School delivers educational services to approximately
one hundred students who are severely emotionaily disturbed or multiple handicapped.
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The funding for the Regional Day School is provided by tuition payments from the local Districts
who send their children to the Regional Day School. The District assumes the financial control and
business management supervision of the School, as well as oversees the total educational program of
the School, The School has its own principal and instructional staff as well as support staff that are
employees of the District. The School building is owned by the State of New Jetsey.

All expenses for the Regional Day School are funded through tuition and not through the local tax
rate of the City of Newark, ‘

The Regional Day School budget is developed annually in conjunction with the School principal
and officials from the District administration. Local school districts who anticipate sending
children to the Regional Day School for the following school year are notified in advance of the
anticipated tuition costs so that their own budgets may be properly constructed to reflect the
tuition costs.

T. Calculation of Excess Surplus

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, the restricted fund balance - excess surplus is a required
calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing
Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to reserve a general fund fund
balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they do not appropriate a required minimum amount
as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years’ budget. The excess fund balance at June 30,
2020 was $2,305,352, which will be appropriated in the 2021/22 budget and $17,381,455 of
prior year excess surplus which was appropriated in the 2020/21 budget.

U. GASB Pronouncements
Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Principles

The GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities in January 2017. This Statement
establishes standards of accounting and financial reporting for fiduciary activities. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Due
to the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year, Management has
not yet determined the impact of the Statement on the financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases in June 2017. This Statement establishes standards

of accounting and financial reporting for leases by lessees and lessors. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Due to the COVID-19
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pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by eighteen months. Management has not yet
determined the impact of the Statement on the financial statements. :

The GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Consiruction Period in June 2018. This Statement establishes accounting requirements for
interest cost incurred before the end of a construction petiod. The requirements of this Statement
. are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019, Due to the COVID-19 pandemic,
the effective date has been postponed by one year. Management has not determined the impact
of the Statement on the financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests — an Amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and Ne. 61 in August 2018, This Statement modifies previous guidance for
reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization. This
Statement also provides guidance for reporting a component unit if a government acquires a 100
percent equity interest in that component unit. The requirements of this Statement are effective
for periods beginning after December 15, 2018, Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective
date has been postponed by one year. Management has determined that is Statement did not
impact the District’s financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations in May 2019. This Statement
establishes a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers to eliminate diversity
in practice. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2020. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by
one year. Management has not determined the impact of the Statement on the financial
statements.

V. Subsequent Events

Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and transactions that occurred between June
30, 2020 through February 4, 2021, the date that the financial statements were available for
issuance. ‘The effect of those events and transactions that provide additional pertinent
information about conditions that exists at the balance sheet and statement of net position date,
have been recognized in the accompanying financial statements. The following occurred
subsequent to June 30, 2020. In August 2020 and September 2020, the District entered into four
.~ operating leases for rental of land and building space. The leases consist of a three year lease,
commencing September 1, 2020, with annual payments ranging from $688,000 to $715,795, a
five year lease commencing October 1, 2020, with annual payments of $237,006, a five year
Jease commencing October 1, 2020, with annual payments of $205,400 per year and a five year
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lease commencing November 1, 2020, with annual payments ranging from $470,000 to $564,000
per year,

As of June 30, 2020, District operations and the ways in which education is pravided have been
disrupted by the outbreak of the novel coronavirus COVID-19, Going forward, COVID-19
could further limit the District’s operations, including unexpected deferrals of tax payments from
the municipality, deferrals or reductions in state aid or an increase in expenses associated with
his or any other potentia! infectious discase outbreak. District management cannot reasonably
predict how long the Pandemic in New Jersey is expected to last and how the outbreak may
impact the financial condition or operations of the District. District management continues to
monitor the Pandemic and plaps to take action to address any significant impact on future
operations, '

2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the
Government-wide Statement of Net Position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net position — governmental activities as reported in the Government-
wide statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains that long-term
liabilities, including capital leases payable, deferred pension liability and compensated absences
payable are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.
The details of this $61,766,653 difference are as follows:

Deferred pension liability $ 1,289,875

Capital leases payable 19,727,452

" Compensated absences 40,749,326
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance-total governmental funds to

arrive at net position — governmental activities $ 61,766,653

3. Deposits and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, amounts on deposit and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Investments are stated at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, dccounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools and Statement
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No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. The District classifies certificates of deposit,
which have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than twelve months from
the date of purchase, as investments and are stated at cost. All other investments arc stated at fair
value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial
institutions they may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible
investments that may be purchased by New Jersey school districts. Additionally, the District has
adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories
protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act
(“GUDPA”). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect governmental units from a loss of funds
on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

NJS.A. 17:9-41 et seq establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of
governmental units. The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in
@ public depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public
depositories include savings and loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and
savings banks, the.deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge
collateral, having a market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of
collected public funds, to secure the deposits of governmental units. If a public depository fails,
the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay
the full amount of their deposits to the governmental units.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories located in
New Jersey that are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal Savings and
Loan Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the United States that insures deposits made
in public depositories. School districts are also permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New
Jersey Cash Management Fund (“NJCMF”) and the New Jersey Asset and Rebate Management
Fund (“NJ ARM™).

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that
exceed depository insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average daily balance of
collected public funds on deposit. -
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Tn addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75% of the
capital funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at
least equal to 100% of the amount exceeding 75%.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal
Reserve Bank of Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking
institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less
than $25,000,000.

The District’s cash and cash equivalents are classified below to inform financial statement users
about the extent to which the District’s deposits and investments are exposed to custodial credit
risk.

Operating cash accounts are held in the District’s name by several commercial banking
institutions. At June 30, 2020, the District’s carrying amount of deposits was $116,175,447 and
the bank balance was $149,177,858. Of the bank balance on June 30, 2020, $1,160,284 of the
District’s cash deposits were securcd by federal depository insurance. The New Jersey GUDPA
covered the bank balance of $136,076,950. $11,940,624 held in the District agency accounts are
not covered by GUDPA. In addition, the District has a bank balance of $3,768,364 of funds held
by fiscal agents in the name of the District at June 30, 2020,

GASB Statement No. 40 requires that the District disclose whether its deposits are exposed to
custodial credit risk (risk that in the event of failure of the counterparty, the District would not be
able to recover the value of its deposit or investment). Deposits are considered to be exposed to
custodial credit risk if they are: uncollateralized (securities are not pledged to the depositor),
collateralized with the securities held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but not in the
name of the District. :

The District does not have a policy for the management of custodial credit risk, other than
depositing all of its funds in banks covered by GUDPA. At least five percent of the District’s
* deposits were fully collateralized by funds held by the financial instifution, but not in the name
of the District, Due fo the nature of GUDPA, further information is not available regarding the
full amount that is collateralized.
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Investments
New Jersey statutes permit the District to purchase the following types of securities:

a. Bonds or other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the United
States,

b. Bonds of any Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal
National Mortgage Agency or of any United States Bank for Cooperatives which have a
maturity date not greater than twelve months from the date of purchase.

c. Bonds or other obligations of the School District.

d. New Jersey Cash Management Fund and New Jersey Asset and Rebate Management
Fund. i

The District did not have any investments held at June 30, 2020 or during the fiscal year ended T
June 30, 2020. :

4, Capital Assets

The following schedule is a summarization of the governmental activities changes in capital
assets for the year ended June 30, 2020:
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Governmenta] activities

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress ~SDA
Construction in progress — District

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and building improvements
Machinery, equipment and vehicles

Total capital assels being depreciated

Less accumlated depreciation for:
Buildings and building improvements
Machinery, equipment and vehicles

Totel accumulated depreciation

Totaj capital assets, being dopreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assefs, net

Year ended June 30, 2020
Beginning Dispositions/
Balance Increases Decreases Traasfers

Ending
Balance

$ 26,452,459

§ 26452439

194043351 § 773,889 195,717,240
29,886,904 13,761,636 $ (5967,722) 37,660,818
251,282,714 14,535,525 - (5,987,722) 259,830,517
940,126,839 5,987,722 946,114,561
17,295,949 2,680,975 §  (862451) 19,114,473
957,422,788 2,680,973 (862,451) $.987,722 965,229,034
477258830 38,676,718 515,935,548
12,416,649 1,550,184 (833,588) 13,133,245
489,675,479 40,226,902 (833,588) - 529,068,793
467747309 (37,545,927) . (28,863) 5,087,722 436,160,241
T 7I0.030,023 § (23,010402) & (28,803} - 5 695,990,758

the District for the year ended June 30, 2020 as follows:
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Year ended June 30, 2020
4, Capital Assets {(continued)
Armount
Current:
Instruction $ 16,073,839
Support Services: '
Attendance / Social Work 635,295
Health services 532,052
Support gervices 9,210,733
Improvement of instructional services : 1,956,557
Educational media services / school library 80,328
Instructional staff training 12,380
General administration 522,932
School administration 1,284,676
Central services . 661,330
Administration information technology 586,735
Operation and maintenance of plant 6,516,755
Student transportation 1,979,590
Special schools 173,700

5 40,226,902

The District acquired capital assets through capital leases for energy conservation equipment for
several schools located in the territorial boundaries governed by the school district. The
depreciation expense on assets acquired with capital lease proceeds is included in the
depreciation cxpense above. The net book value of the capital assets held under these capital
leases as of June 30, 2020 is as follows:
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4, Capital Assets (continued)

Balance Dispositions/ Balance
Juae 30,2019  Increases Transfers June 30, 2020

Capita} assets, not being depreciated; '
Construction in progress $ 11,977,722 § 4742756 §  (4,615,000) $ 12,105,478
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 11,977,722 4,742,756 4,615,000y 12,105,478

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and building improvements 4,615,000 4,615,000

Machinery, equipment and vehicles 19,491,822 19,491,822
Total capital assets being depreciated 19,491,822 - 4,615,000 24,106,822
Less accumulated depreciation for: :

Machinery, equipment and vehicles 18,210,359 1,029,846 19,240,205
Total accumulated depreciation 18,219,359 1,029,846 19,240,205
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 1,281,463  (1,029,846) 4,866,617
Capital assets held under leases $ 13,259,185 §$ 3,712,910 $ 16,972,095

The following is a schedule of the business-type activities changes in capital assets for the year
ended June 30, 2020:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2019 Inereases Disposals  June 30, 2020
Business-type activities:
Equiptent $ 6,064,886 % 122514 § (128329) § 6,059,071
Less accumulated depreciation {4,543,046) (187,905) 128,329 (5,002,622}
Total Business-type activities capital assets, net 3 I21840°F  (65,391) 3 - 5 1,056,449

5. Long-Term Liabilities
General Obligation Bonds

The Newark Public School District is currently a Type I School District, As mandated by State
Statutes, all Type I debt service of the District is considered the direct obligation of the City of
Newark and therefore, is recorded within the City’s financial statements and not on the School
District’s financial statements. As of June 30, 2020, debt outstanding and recorded in the
financial statements of the City of Newark amounted to $49,037,000.
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the following changes occurred in governmental activities
long-term liabilities:

Balance Balance Due within
June 30,2019 ° Additions Reductions  June 30, 2020 One Year
Governmental activities: ’
Deferred pension liability §  L650414 ) $ 360,539 $§ 1,289,875 § 392,972
Capifal leases payable 22,510,346 2,782,894 19,727,452 2,824,174
Compensated absences 37,188.440 § 21,369,107 17,808,221 40,749,326 993,880
Sub-total 61,349,200 21,369,107 20,951,654 61,766,653 4,21 1,026
Net pensjon ]iabiiit}u 283,850,988 13,949,477 264,90 1,51 1 -
Total governmental activities
Long-term liabilities $ 345,200,188 § 21,369,107 $ 39,901,131 § 326,668,164 $ 4,211,026

The compensated absences, deferred pension liability, capital leases payable and net pension
liability are expected to be paid from budgetary appropriations in the general fund.

Obligations Under Capital Leases

A lease with a bank was issued on December 30, 2015 in the amount of $12,669,000 to finance
energy conservation measures pursuant to an Energy Savings Improvement Plan (“ESIP”) at an
interest rate of 3.304%. The first payment of this capital lease was paid on January 15, 2017, During
the year ended June 30, 2020, $529,205 of project costs were expended for the project, for a total
amount fo date of $12,105,478, with a remaining balance of $563,522, The District will be utilizing
the savings from the energy plan to make the future lease payments. Principal and interest due on the
lease are included in the future minimum lease payment schedule below.

A lease with a bank was issued on February 22, 2018 in the amount of $4,600,000 to finance energy
conservation measures pursuant to an ESIP at an interest rate of 3.64%. The first payment of this
capital lease was paid on February 22, 2019. During the year ended June 30, 2020, $4,213,551 of
project costs were fully expended for this project, for a total amount fo date of $4,615,000. The
additional $15,000 of expenditures were funded by the interest earned on the lease funds and is not
considered an overexpenditure. The District will be utilizing the savings from the energy plan to
make the future lease payments, Principal and interest due on the lease are included in the future
minimum lease payment schedule below. ‘ '
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A lease with a bank was issued on August 31, 2017 in the amount of $9,982,516 to finance the
acquisition of various equipment at an interest rate of 1.69%. The first principal payment of this
capital lease was paid on September 1, 2018. During the year ended June 30, 2020, $2,428,098 of
project costs were expended for this project, with a Temaining balance of $2,095,805. The District
will be utilizing the interest carned from the lease proceeds to make the future lease payments.
Principal and interest due on the lease are included in the fisture minimum lease payment schedule
below. ' '

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under all capital leases and the
present value of the net future minimum lease payments at June 30, 2020:

Fiscal year ending June 30 Amount
2021 $ 3,378,423
2022 3,407,947
2023 3,436,501
2024 : 1,379,269
2025 1,410,593
2026-2030 6,762,744
2031-2033 : 3,406,573
Total minimum lease payment 23,182,050
Less amount representing interest (3,454,598)
Present value of net future minimum lease payments 3 19,727,452

6. Pension Plans

Plan Descriptions

Substantially all of the District’s employees participate in one of the following contributory
defined benefit public employee retirement systems, which have been established by State
statute: the Teacher's Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public Employees’ Retirement
System (PERS) or the Board of Education Employees’ Pension Fund of Essex County
(BOEEPFEC). Both the TPAF and PERS are sponsored and administered by the State of New
Jersey. An elected Board administers BOEEPFEC. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
retirement system is considered a cost sharing multiple employee plan with a special funding
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6. Pension Plans (continued)

situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New
Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-contributing employers, The
Public Employees Retirement System and the Board of Education Employees’ Pension Fund of
Essex County are also considered cost sharing multiple-employer plans.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund

The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund was established in January 1955 under the provisions
of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all
full time public school employees in the State. Membership is mandatory for such employees
and vesting occurs after 10 years of service for pension benefits and 25 years for health care
coverage. Age eligibility and benefit provisions were affected by Chapters 92 and 103, P.L. 2007,
Chapter 89, P.L. 2008, Chapter 1, P.L. 2010, and Chapter 78, P.L. 2011. Members are classified into
one of five tiers dependent upon the date of their enrollment. Tier 1, 2 and 3 members are eligible to
retire at age 60, 60, and 62, respectively, with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/55™ of
the average annual compensation for the highest three fiscal years’ compensation for each year of
membership during years of credited service. Tier 4 and 5 members are eligible to retire at age 62
and 65, respectively, with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/60" of the average annual
compensation for the highest five fiscal years’ compensation for cach year of membership during
years of credited service. Anyone who retires early and is under their respective tier’s retirement age
receives retirement benefits as calculated in the above mentioned formulas but at a reduced rate in
accordance with applicable New Jersey Statufe based upon their tier. '

Public Employee’s Retirement System

The Public Employees’ Retirement System was established in January 1955 under the provisions
of N.I.S.A. 43;15A to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all
full time employees of the State or any county, municipality, school Board or public agency
provided the employee is not a member of another State-administered retirement system. Age
eligibility and benefit provisions were affected by Chapters 92 and 103, P.L. 2007, Chapter 89, P.L.
2008, Chapter 1, P.L. 2010, and Chapter 78, P.L. 2011. Members are classified into one of five tiers
dependent upon the date of their enrollment. Tier 1, 2 and 3 members are eligible to retire at age 60,
60, and 62, respectively with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/55% of the average
annnal compensation for the highest three fiscal years” compensation for each year of membership
during years of credited service. Tier 4 and 5 members are eligible to retire at age 62 and 65,
respectively with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/60% of the average annual
compensation for the highest five fiscal years” compensation for each year of membership during
years of credited service. Anyone who retires early and is under their respective tier’s retirement age
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teceives retirement benefits as calculated in the above mentioned formulas but at a reduced rate in
.accordance with applicable New Jersey Statute based upon their tier.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues
publicly available financial reports that include the financial statements and required
supplementary information for TPAF and PERS. The financial reports may be obtained by
writing to the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and
Benefits, P.O. Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295.

Board of Education Employees’ Pension Fund of Essex County

The Board of Education’s Employees’ Pension Fund of Essex County (BOEEPFEC) was
established through the passage of Chapter 112, Public Laws of 1929 of the State of New Jersey,
to provide coverage for non-teaching personnél in the Essex County school system. The Fund
was closed to new membership with the passage of Chapter 86, Laws of New Jersey, 1980.
Pursuant fo the Act, a referendum on Social Security coverage was conducted by the New Jersey
Division of Pensions for eligible active members of the fund on January 30, 1981, Because the
number of members voting in favor of Social Security exceeded the minimum percentage of
members voting for Social Security coverage, those members were transferred to the New Jersey
Public Employees’ Retirement System,

All active members have met the minimum 10-year vesting provision. Members on roll at
January 1, 2000 are eligible for retirement at age 60 with an annual benefit generally determined
to be 1/45% of the average annual compensation for the highest three fiscal years’ compensation
for each year of membership during years of creditable service. Retirement provisions have been
significantly amended since inception and a plan booklet is available at the Fund office.

The statute governing the BOEEPFEC Plan provides for annual cost-of-living increases for those
who have been retired at least two calendar years. Under an agreement reached with the Boards
of Education, Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) effective February 1, 1983 and thereafter are
billed on a pay-as-you-go basis. The annual contribution of each Board is the sum of the COLA
payments made during the year to the retirees of the Board plus an administrative charge based
on an actuarial calculation. The plan pays 50% of the additional COLA increase for amounts
certified after 1995, The BOEEPFEC Plan issues publicly available financial reports.
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Funding Policy

The contribution policy is set by New Jersey State Statutes and contributions are required by
active members and contributing members. Plan member and employer contributions may be
amended by State of New Jersey legislation. Under the provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011,
employee contribution rates for TPAF and PERS increased to 7.5% of emmployees’ annual
compensation. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both the
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for noncontributory
death benefits and post-retirement medical premiums. Under current statute the Board is a non-~
contributing employer of the TPAF.

The BOEEPFEC plan requires employee contributions of 3% of annual base salary. Funding by
the Essex County Boards of Education is determined by recommendation of the actuary pursuant
to an actuarial evaluation. The funding method used is the frozen entry age actuarial cost
method. Under this method, the unfunded past service liability as of June 30, 1981 was frozen
and funded over the remaining amortization period. The remaining portion of pension costs are
calculated in such a way as to spread the required contribution, known as the normal cost over
the remaining lifetime of the active members as a level percentage salary.

The District’s actuarially determined contribution to PERS (not including the deferred pension
liability) for the years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018 were $13,119,920, $12,962,795 and
$11,041,917, respectively, for each of the three years, equal to the required contributions for
each year. In the 2009 fiscal year, the State of New Jersey permitted school districts to defer up
to 50% of their contributions due in 2009. The District elected this option, resulting in a deferral
of $3,597,116, which has been reported in the District’s long-term liabilities section. The District
made a payment on this accrued liability, which is not included in the 2020 contribution above in
the amount of $598,152, which included $360,539 of principal and $237,613 of interest costs.
The balance at June 30, 2020 is $1,289,875.

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the State of New Jersey contributed $82,312,819 to the
TPAF for on-behalf medical, long-term disability insurance, and pension contributions on behalf
of the District. Also, in accordance with N.J S.A. 18A:66-66, the State of New Jersey
reimbursed the District $23,098,107 during the year ended June 30, 2020 for the employer’s
share of social security contributions for TPAF members as calculated on their base salaries.
These amounts have been included in the Government-wide and fund financial statements.

The District’s COLA contribution to BOEEPFEC for the years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and
2018 were $2,964,300, $2,867,863 and $3,191,814, respectively. Based on the actuarial
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evaluations, normal costs and administrative charges have not been charged to various Boards of
Education for the last four years. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension
expense, information about the-fiduciary net position of PERS and additions to/deductions from
PERS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
PERS. For the purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported
at fair value.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resoureces and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

Public Emplovee s Retirement System (PERS)

At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability of $243,033,374 for its proportionate share of
the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation July 1, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. The District’s proportion of
the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the proj ected contributions of all participating school
districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the District’s proportion was 1.3488004194
percent, which was an increase of 0.0455837894 from its proportion measured as of June 30,
2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized full accrual pension expense of
$7,073,978 in the government-wide financial statements, At June 30, 2020, the District reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the
following sources:
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Deferred Deferred
Quiflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Changes of assumptions $ 24,267,775 g 84,356,115
Difference between expected and actual experience 4,362,131 1,073,614
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments 3,836,376
Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 10,399,823 6,255,408
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 15,145,133
$ 54,174862  § 95,521,513

$15,145,133 is reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resuiting from
school district contributions subsequent to the measurement date. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be

recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30;

2021 $ (9,814,236)
2022 (21,267,375)
2023 (17,476,781)
2024 (7,309,012)
2025 : (624,380)

$ (56,491,784)
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Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability for the June 30, 2019 measurement date was determined by an

actuarial valuation as of July I, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. This actuarial
valuation used the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation rate: i
Price 2.15%
Wage 3.25%
Salary:
Increase through 2026 2.00 — 6.00% based on years of service
Thereafter ‘ 3.00 — 7.00% based on years of service
Investment rate of return 7.00%

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2018. It is likely that future
experience will not exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience
deviates from these assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than
anticipated. The mote the experience deviates, the larger the impact on future financial
statements,

Mortality Rates

Pre-retirement morality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income
Employee mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for
females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-
retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy
Retiree mortality table with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females,
and with fiture improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability
retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled
Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2% adjustment for females,
and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality
improvement is based on Scale MP-2019. '
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Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments
(7.00% at June 30, 2019) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the
Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of
trustees and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a
building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class, These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class included in PERS’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the
following table:

Long-Term
Target Fxpected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 4.67%
Cash Equivalents 5.00% 2.00%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% . 2.68%
Investment Grade Credit 10.00% 4.25%
High Yield 2.00% 537%
Private Credit 6.00% 7.92%
Real Assets 2.50% 9.31%
Real Estate 7.50% 8.33%
U.S. Equity 28.00% 8.26%
Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity 12.50% 9.00%
Emerging Markets Equity 6.50% 11.37%
Private Equity 12.00% 10.85%

100.00%
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Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.28% as of June 30, 2019 and
5 66% as of June 30, 2018, This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of
1.50% as of June 30, 2019 based on the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or
higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made based on 70% of the actuarially determined
contributions for the state employer and 100% of the actuarially determined contributions for the
local employer. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to
be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2057.
Therefore, the long-term expected rated of return on plan investments was applied to projected
benefit payments through 2057 and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit
payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the
discount rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liability as
of June 30, 2019 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the
District’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.28 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher

(7.28 percent) than the current rate:

At 1% At current At 1%
decrease discount rate increase
(5.28%) (6.28%) (7.28%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 306,990,643 $ 243,033,374 $ 189,140,313
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued financial report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees Retirement System.

Additional Information

Collective balances of the Local Group at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Deferred outflows of resources § 3,149,522,616
Deferred inflows of resources $ 7.645,087,574
Net pension liability $ 18,143,832,135
District's Proportion 1.3488004194%

Collective pension expense for the Local Group for the measurement period ended June 30, 2019
is $974,471,686,

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with
pension through the pension plan (active and inactive employees) determined at July 1, 2019,
2018, 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014 is 5.21, 5.63, 5.48, 5.57, 5.72, and 6.44 years, respectively.

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF Y-Special Funding Situation

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by
the State in accordance with N.J.S.A, 18:66-33, Therefore, these local participating employers
are considered to be in a special funding sitvation as defined by (GASB Statement No. 68 and the
State is treated as a non-employer contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do
not contribute directly to the plan (except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no
net pension liability or deferred outflows ot inflows to report in the financial statements of the
local participating employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local
participating employers must disclose the portion of the non-employer contributing entities’ total
proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the local participating
employer. The State’s proportionate share of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2019 was $1,577,076,375. The District